Version-E141107

OPTIc2

with Software OPTIc2.NET

Manual





Important Information

General

Before using your *ALGE-TIMING* device read the complete manual carefully. It is part of the device and contains important information about installation, safety and its intended use. This manual cannot cover all conceivable applications. For further information or in case of problems that are mentioned not at all or not sufficiently detailed, please contact your *ALGE-TIMING* representative. You can find contact details on our homepage <u>www.alge-timing.com</u>

Safety

Apart from the information of this manual all general safety and accident prevention regulations of the legislator must be taken into account.

The device must only be used by trained persons. The setting-up and installation must only be executed according to the manufacturer's data.

Intended Use

The device must only be used for its intended applications. Technical modifications and any misuse are prohibited because of the risks involved! *ALGE-TIMING* is not liable for damages that are caused by improper use or incorrect operation.

Power supply

The stated voltage on the type plate must correspond to voltage of the power source. Check all connections and plugs before usage. Damaged connection wires must be replaced immediately by an authorized electrician. The device must only be connected to an electric supply that has been installed by an electrician according to IEC 60364-1. Never touch the mains plug with wet hands! Never touch live parts!

Cleaning

Please clean the outside of the device only with a smooth cloth. Detergents can cause damage. Never submerge in water, never open or clean with wet cloth. The cleaning must not be carried out by hose or high-pressure (risk of short circuits or other damage).

Liability Limitations

All technical information, data and information for installation and operation correspond to the latest status at time of printing and are made in all conscience considering our past experience and knowledge. Information, pictures and description do not entitle to base any claims. The manufacturer is not liable for damage due to failure to observe the manual, improper use, incorrect repairs, technical modifications, use of unauthorized spare parts. Translations are made in all conscience. We assume no liability for translation mistakes, even if the translation is carried out by us or on our behalf.

Disposal

If a label is placed on the device showing a crossed out dustbin on wheels (see drawing), the European directive 2002/96/EG applies for this device.

Please get informed about the applicable regulations for separate collection of electrical and electronical waste in your country and do not dispose of the old devices as household waste. Correct disposal of old equipment protects the environment and humans against negative consequences!



Operating ranges and interferences

The *A*LGE WTN operates in 4.2 GHz frequency band, the same as WLAN. This is also used by other services. The operating range as well as the operation may be disturbed by devices working at the same or neighboring frequencies.

Copyright by ALGE-TIMING GmbH

All rights reserved. Any duplication, either in full or in part, requires the prior written consent of the copyright holder.





Declaration of Conformity

We declare that the following products comply with the requirements of the listed standards.

We, ALGE-TIMING GmbH Rotkreuzstrasse 39 A-6890 Lustenau

declare under our sole responsibility, that the photo finish camera of the type:

OPTIc2, OPTIc2o and OPTIc2n

is in conformity with the following standard(s) or other normative documents(s):

Safety: EN 60950-1:2006 + A11:2009

EMC: EN55022:2006+A1:2007 EN55024:1998+A1:2001+A2:2003 EN61000 3-2:2006 + A1:2009 + A2:2009 EN61000 3-3:2008

Additional Information:

The product herewith complies with the requirements of the Low Voltage Directive 73/23/EEC, also the EMC Directive 2004/108EG and accordingly carries the CE-marking.

Lustenau, 10.02.2010

ALGE-TIMING GmbH

Alber Vetter

Albert Vetter (General Manager)





Table of Contents

1	Intro	oduction	. 7
	1.1	Models	. 7
	1.2	Components of the System	. 7
	1.3	System Requirements	. 8
	1.4 1.5	Accessory	8. م
	1.5		. 9
2	Lay	out of the OPTIc2NET	10
3	Sele	ct Language of OPTIc2.NET Software	11
4	Con	nection of the Camera	12
	4.1	Camera connected to IEEE1394	12
	4.2	Camera connected to an optical cable	12
	4.3	Camera connected with Network cable	13
	4.4	Camera connected at Distribution Box OCD2	13
	4.5	Connection of several cameras	14
5	Can	nera Position	15
	5.1	Lens Angle	16
	5.2	Focusing the Camera	17
	5.2.1	Adjustment of Focus (Aperture)	17 17
~	5.2.2		40
6	Pho	to Finish for Different Sports	18
	6.1	Selection of the Type of Sport	18
	6.1.1	Track and Field with Anemometer	18
	6.1.3	Track and Field without Anemometer	18
	6.1.4	Horse Race	18
	6.1.5	Dog Race	19 10
	6.1.7	Cycling	19
	6.2	Sports with Individual Starts	19
	6.3	Track and Field (Athletics)	19
	6.3.1	Zero Control for Athletics (Start Control)	23
	6.4	Horse Races	23
	6.5	Dog Races	24
	6.6	Rowing or Canoe	24
	6.7	Cycling Races	24
7	Sett	ing of the Camera	26
	7.1	Possible Camera Settings	26
	7.2	Sensor Adjustments	27
	7.3	Camera Configuration	28
	7.4 7.5	Motor Zoom Lens Adjustment	29 30
	7.6	Image Adjustment	31
0	6-44		<u>.</u> วา
ð	301	wale OF HUZINE I	کد
	8.1 8.2	ICON LIST	32 32
	0.2 8.3	Menus of the Software	33 34
	8.3.1	Menu <file></file>	34
	8.3.2	Menu <timing></timing>	35
	8.3.3	Menu <setup></setup>	36
	8.3.5	Menu <sport></sport>	39
	8.3.6	Menu <show></show>	39
	8.3.7	Menu <help></help>	41





9	Eva	luation Windows	.42
9	Э.1	View 1	42
9	9.2	View 2	43
9	9.3	Overview	43
10	11	iming (Timing Window)	.44
	10.1	Tool Bar of the Timing Window:	46
	10.2	Photo Finish Recording	47
	10.2.	1 Manual Recording	. 47
	10.2.	2 Push Button Recording	47
	10.2.	3 Photocell Recording	. 47
	10.2.	4 Motion Detection	. 47
11	E	valuation of Races	.48
	111	Time Window	48
	112	Manual Evaluation	48
	113	l ane Evaluation	<u>4</u> 9
	11 <i>1</i>	BIR Evaluation	50
	115	We show three different lines on the photo finish nicture	51
	11.5	1 Time Cursor	51
	11.5	2 Evaluation Lines	.52
	11.5	3 Time Jump Markers	52
			-
12	н	eat List	.53
	12.1	Field Selector	53
	12.2	Group Mode	54
	12.2.	1 Start Time for a Class	55
	12.3	Delete Line	56
	12.4	Insert Line	56
	12.5	Delete List	56
	12.6	Erase all Times	56
	12.7	Import an Excel list	56
	12.8	Export an Excel list	57
	12.9	Export the Result list	58
	12.10	İmport a List Layout	58
	12.11	Export a Lit Layout	58
40			50
13	IVI	eet Browser	.59
14	S	ynchronizing of the OPTIc2	.62
45	l	to motion of IDCom	~ 4
15	In		04
	15.1	Adjustment of the IDCam	65
	15.1.	1 OPTIc2-camera and IDCam are connected at the same PC	. 65
	15.1.	2 OPTIc2-camera and IDCam are connected at different PCs	. 65
	15.1.	Jatagration of the IDCom of the same DC	66
	15.2		00
16	н	ow to keep the OPTIc2 updated	.67
	16 1	Direct links to download the undates	67
	16.2	Indate of the OPTIc2 PC-Software	67
	16.3	Update of the Camera	67
	10.0		07
17	Т	echnical Data of the OPTIc2n	.68
18	Δ	ccessories for Photo Finish	70
10	ה		70
	18.1		70
	18.2	IEEE 1394 Cable and Connections	/1
	18.3	INetwork Cable with RJ45 Plug	/2
	18.4	Uptical Cable and Fiber Uptic Adapter	/2
	18.5	Lenses for the OPTIc2	73
	18.6	Tripod and Gear Head	73
	187	Distribution Box OCD2	74

ALGE	Manual Photo Finish OPTIc2.NET	

18.7.2	Examples for the Connection of the Camera	76
18.7.3	Technical Data of the Distribution Box OCD2	78

Model OPTIc2

Model OPTIc2o



Model OPTIc2n



- 1.....IEEE 1394b 9-pol bilingual (2 x)
- 2.....IEEE 1394a 6-pol
- 3..... GOF (LC duplex glass optical fiber connector)
- 4..... Socket for motor zoom
- 5..... Socket for photocell (2 x)
- 6..... Fuse for camera F1 T1.6A
- 7..... Input for external power supply (+9 to 36 VDC)
- 8..... LED for OK status
- 9...... Banana Socket Data output for display board
- 10....Banana Socket Finish Impulse
- 11....Banana Socket Start Impulse (2 x)
- 12....Spirit level
- 13....Sight to aim the camera at the finish line
- 14....RJ45 socket for CAT5 cable





1 Introduction

This manual can also be opened directly in the OPTIc2NET-software (pdf-file) by pressing the key **<F1>** or if you go to the menu **<HELP>** and click on **<F1** Open the user manual>.

The *A*LGE OPTIc2 system is an electronic photo finish system with integrated evaluation software. The Line Scan Camera (CCD image sensor) scans every movement on the finish line, records it on the hard disk of the PC and displays it on the PC screen. It is at any time possible to print the picture.

The photo finish system is built with latest technology. The camera has an improved CCDline scan sensor that is suited to take excellent pictures at all possible light conditions. The system allows up to 3000 lines per second. A vertical resolution is possible of up to 1360 pixel at 16.8 million colors (24 bit).

1.1 Models

We offer three photo finish cameras. The standard model OPTIc2 has only standard Firewire connections (IEEE1395), whereas the model OPTIc20 has additionally an optical Firewire connection (for long distance between camera and PC).

OPTIc2:

The standard model has Firewire connections (IEEE 1394) to connect a PC. The maximum cable length for such a cable is 10 m. *ALGE* offers longer cables with integrated repeaters.

OPTIc2n:

This model has in addition to the Firewire connections (IEEE1394) an optical connection GOF (LC duplex glass optical fiber connector) and a connection for a network cable with RJ45 plug. This allows transmitting data with a CAT7 cable over a distance of up to 80 m.

OPTIc2o:

This model has in addition to the standard Firewire connections (IEEE1394) an optical connection GOF (LC duplex glass optical fiber connector). This allows transmitting data form the camera over a distance up to 300 m.

1.2 Components of the System

The OPTIc2, OPTIc2o and OPTIc2n include the following parts:

- Photo finish camera OPTIc2, OPTIc2o or OPTIc2n
- C-Mount adapter (between lens and camera)
- OPTIc2 USB stick with PC software and manual











1.3 System Requirements

PC Requirements:

- Intel i5 Processor or faster
- Windows XP, Windows Vista, Window 7, Windows 8 and Windows 8.1 (32 or 64 Bit Version)
- 4 GB RAM (the higher the better)
- Hard disk with min. 250 GB (the faster the hard disk, the longer the recording time)
- Keyboard for PC
- Mouse for PC
- Graphic board with min. 128 MB RAM
- Monitor with min. 1024 x 768 resolution and true color
- OHCI compatible IEEE 1394 interface
- Color printer to print the pictures and result lists (color laser or ink jet)

1.4 Accessory

For the all OPTIc2 models we can offer several additional products. Please contact your *ALGE*-dealer for further details:

- IEEE 1394 PCI card for inserting in the PC
- IEEE 1394 PC-card for notebooks
- Camera tripod TRIMAN for camera
- Gear head 410 for camera adjustment (3-dimensional camera adjustment)
- Zoom Lens Z75 (12.5 75 mm / F1.2)
- Motor Zoom MZ75 (12.5 75 mm / F1.8), remote control from PC
- Motor Zoom MZ160 (16 160 mm / F1.8 1400), remote control von PC
- Wide angle lens L8.5 (8.5 mm / F1.0)
- Weather protection case for camera
- Several IEEE1394 cable
- Adapter RJ45-1394 from IEEE1394 cable to network cable
- Adapter GLAS1394 from IEEE1394 cable to glass optical fiber cable
- Cables and cable reels with network cable
- Cables and cable reels with glass optical fiber cable
- Electronic Startgun e-Start with speaker system BANG
- Startmicrophone SM8
- Startgun STP with 9 mm or 6 mm blanks
- Speech Amplifier SV4/SM
- Headset HS3-2 or HS2-1
- Photocell PR1a-R (Distance: 1 to 25 m)
- Photocell PR1a-d (Distance: up to 150 m)
- 3-fold Photocell RLS3c with tripod (for athletics)
- Push Button 020-02
- Numerical Display Boards (e. g. GAZ5 or D-LINE)
- Matrix Display Systems for stadiums
- Cable Reel with 2-core steel cable (extra strong military production); several lengths
- Anemometer Windspeed WS2





1.5 Function

The line scan camera has not the usual aerial sensor (e.g. like a video camera), but a CCDline scan sensor. The photo finish camera does not record a complete picture at once, but only one vertical line. The recording speed for this vertical line is adjustable until up to 3000 times per second. Each line is stored on the hard disk and is shown on the screen in chronological order. If something moves in front of the camera (e.g. an athlete) you receive a picture of it. Each vertical line is allocated to a time.

The following example shows how a picture is recorded. If you use a scan rate of 1/1000 seconds it means that the finish line is scanned 1000 times per second. Each of these pictures records a small piece of the object. If the speed is adjusted correctly, it shows the object in the right size.



The next example shows the same object, but now crossing the finish line with a higher speed and the same scan rate of 1/1000. The shape of the recorded picture depends on the speed of the picture and the scan rate. Therefore, it is very important to record with the correct scan rate to get the realistic shape of the image. The image below shows the object shortened if using the same scan rate as at a faster speed. Of course, the object is scanned less often under such circumstances.



Part of the OPTIc2 is an electronic image processing system. The recorded picture is stored on the hard disk of the PC (bitmap format) and can be printed anytime with a printer that supports Windows.





2 Layout of the OPTIc2NET

The layout of the software is completely adjustable. You can dock-in or dock-out windows as you want. You can store your favorite layout(s) so that it takes just a click to go back to it.

The main windows are:

- Overview Picture Photo finish picture in a small scale (overview)
- View 1 e.g. evaluation picture or camera 1
- View 2 e.g. zoom picture or camera 2
- Camera Preview shows the current camera picture
- Meet Browser shows the event structure (meet, session, event and heat)
- Impulse Log list shows all timing impulses in chronological order
- Heat List result list of the heat with adjustable fields







3 Select Language of OPTIc2.NET Software

It is possible to select the language of the software at any time after the installation. After changing the language it is **not** necessary to close and open the software again.

- Click on <Setup>
- Click on the down arrow next to <Language>
- Double click on the language that you want to use

File	Timing	Setup	Connection	Sport	Shov	v Help
Language	Engli	sh - United S	States	*	-	Jai
	Englis	h - United St		Out.		
	📕 Germa	an - Germany	(amera	box *	
	Italian	- Italy		OPTIc2 devices		
	🛨 Finnis	h - Finland				
Overview	📕 Japan	ese - Japan		-		

At the present time it is possible to select the following languages:

- English
- German
- Italian
- Finnish
- Norwegian
- Japanese

Attention:

The language selection is always shown in English, so that it is also readable for everybody if e.g. Japanese is selected

If your language is not integrated in the software it is possible to translate it yourself. You can

load the language files by clicking on the second button at the very top. Press now the right mouse button of the file "OPTIc2Net_English-United-States.xls" and select <Open with> and <Excel>. It now shows the English translation file in an Excel sheet. Rename this file e.g. with the language that you translate. Then you translate the text in the column "text in translated language" of all the spreadsheets of this Excel file. Safe the changed file. After finishing

the translation you can load this file with the second button 📩 at the very top.

If you send this translated file to *ALGE-TIMING* (<u>office@alge-timing.com</u>) we will integrate the new language in the standard installation so it is also available when installing the software anew after an update.





4 Connection of the Camera

4.1 Camera connected to IEEE1394

The OPTIc2 camera can be directly connected with the IEEE1394 cable at the PC. The maximum cable length of the IEEE1394 cable is 10 m.



Attention:

There are different types of IEEE1394 cables. Depending on the PC connection and the camera model you have to use a certain IEEE1394 cable (see point 18.2 IEEE 1394 Cable and Connections).

4.2 Camera connected to an optical cable

If you connect a camera with an optical cable, you need an adapter GLAS1394 or Distribution Box OCD2 between camera and PC. The camera model OPTIc2o and OPTIc2n can be connected directly with the optical cable without adapter GLAS1394. The optical cable is used for distances from 80 m onwards. You can use it for distances of more than 600 m.



Specifications for the optical cable:

GOF (LC duplex fiber optical cable), 50 µm fiber optical cable





4.3 Camera connected with Network cable

If you connect an OPTIc2 camera with a network cable, you need an adapter RJ45-1394 or a Distribution Box OCD2. The camera model OPTIc2n and Distribution Box OCD2 can be connected directly with the network cable without additional adapter RJ45-1394. The network cable is used for distances from 10 to 80 m.



Specifications of the network cable:

- Cross cable CAT5 max. 50 m
- Cross cable CAT6 max. 65 m
- Cross cable CAT7 max. 80 m

The network cable reels offered by *A*LGE-TIMING with 50 m or 80 m cable have a larger copper diameter and are made for heavy duty. The larger copper diameter is important to supply the camera directly from the Distribution Box OCD2 via network cable.

4.4 Camera connected at Distribution Box OCD2

If you have a Distribution Box OCD2 you can connect the camera with an Ethernet CAT7 cross cable with RJ45 plugs or an optical cable direct at the Distribution Box. Using a cross cable the camera is also supplied by the Distribution Box.

When using the special *ALGE-TIMING* cable reel cross cable it is possible to supply the camera up to 80 m with this cables. With standard cable it is only possible up to about 30 m. The maximal cable length of such a cable is 80 m.

From the distribution box to the PC you have to use an IEEE1394 cable.







4.5 Connection of several cameras

You can connect up to three cameras at one PC and select the camera that you want to use.

No matter where you connect the camera(s), they work with the PC in an IEEE1394 network. You can connect the cameras at the following sockets:

- PC: IEEE1394-sockets
- OPTIc2 Camera: IEEE1394-sockets
- OPTIc2o Camera: IEEE1394-sockets, GOF-sockets
 - OPTIc2n Camera: IEEE1394-sockets, GOF-sockets, RJ45-sockets

Example: Camera connected with network cable







5 Camera Position

The camera of the photo finish system must be set exactly on a straight line with the finish line. Depending on the sport discipline it needs a different angle to the finish line (2.1 Lens Angle).



The picture above shows the camera straight to the finish line. This is the correct way to set the camera.

The picture below shows the camera not straight to the finish line. In such a way it is not possible to take correct pictures!







5.1 Lens Angle

The lens angle is the recording angle of the camera lens in vertical direction.



Zoom Lenses:

smallest lens angle To select the right lens for the camera the lens angle is most important. A zoom lens has a variable lens angle, a fix lens has not. biggest lens angle To calculate the camera angle you Lens Angle need to knwo the measurements Height of the Camera for L1 and L2 as well as the height of the camera H Н min. 20° about L1 Horizontal distance from camera to finish line width of the finish

From the horizontal distance of the camera to the finish line (L1), the width of the finish and the camera height the camera angle can be calculated.

Our most commonly used C-Mount zoom lens Z75 has an adjustable camera angle from 7° (75 mm) to 31° (12.5 mm).

Camera angles for C-Mount Lenses:

•	8.5 mm	1360 pixel resolution	about 58°
•	12.5 mm	1360 pixel resolution	about 31°
•	16 mm	1360 pixel resolution	about 28°
•	75 mm	1360 pixel resolution	about 7°
•	160 mm	1360 nivel recolution	about 2º

160 mm 1360 pixel resolution about 3

To adjust the camera it is very important that the camera is horizontally leveled. To guarantee this, the camera is equipped with a spirit level on its back.





Focusing the Camera 5.2

An important factor to receive good quality photo finish images is to focus the camera. Only a good adjustment of the aperture (focus) guarantees good pictures. Additionally, it is important that you select the correct scan rate.

5.2.1 Adjustment of Focus (Aperture)

Adjust the aperture with the first (front) ring of the lens (for manual lenses). If you have a motorized zoom execute the adjustment from the OPTIc2NET software on the PC (see chapter 7.4 Motor Zoom Lens Adjustment.

Adjust the zoom so that you see the required finish area on the monitor. Look at the middle part of the finish line. The more details you see at this part of the picture the better is the adjustment.

5.2.2 Scan Rate

The finish line is scanned by the photo finish camera between 100 and 3000 times per second. The adjustable scan rate depends on the speed of the object that you want to record and of the distance between the camera and the recorded object.

As reference value for the scan rate for different sports at a full vertical camera resolution of 1360 pixel, refer to below stated table (please note that the given values may vary extremely if one of the above given parameter does not apply, values stated in lines per second).

- Athletics: 1200 to 1800
- Horse Racing Gallop: 1200 to 3000 .
- Horse Racing Trotting: 1200 to 2000 .

100 to 250

1000 to 1500

2000 to 3000

2000 to 3000

- Rowing:
- Cycling Street: 2000 to 3000 • 2500 to 3000
- Cycling Track: •
- Greyhound: •
- Short Track: 400 to 1000 •
- Cross Country Skiing: 1700 to 2700 • 1700 to 2700
- **Biathlon:** •
- Ski Cross: •
- Boarder Cross: 2000 to 3000 .
- Ski Alpine:









6 Photo Finish for Different Sports

It is possible to use the photo finish OPTIc2 for almost all sports. The software OPTIc2NET allows you to measure the start time, finish time and run time.

6.1 Selection of the Type of Sport

The software OPTIc2NET has integrated the most common sports that use photo finish. If you select the sport, sport specific adjustments open or rules that are specific for this sport are included (e.g. for athletics the time calculation works differently than in any other sport).

🗱 Type of sport	General 👻	Ranking with precise time			
	General				
	Track and field with anemometer				
	Track and field without anemometer	Ranking method			
123	Horse race	The second s			
15	Dog race				
Ĥ	Rowing / Canoe				
8	Cycling				

- Click on <Sport>
- Click on the arrow at the right side of <Type of sport>
- A pull down menu opens and shows the possible selections
- Click on the sport that you want to use. If it does not show your sport select <General>

6.1.1 General

Use for sports that are not listed below. It is adjusted for general use (standard).

6.1.2 Track and Field with Anemometer

Set this mode for track and field when using an *A*LGE-TIMING anemometer WS2. If you select the correct distance for each heat the wind measurement is executed automatically. When selecting track and field it also executes the time calculation by IAAF rules (rounding the time always up to the next $1/100^{\text{th}}$).

6.1.3 Track and Field without Anemometer

Set this mode for track and field when not using an *ALGE-TIMING* anemometer WS2 (e.g. for indoor events or without *ALGE-TIMING* anemometer). When selecting track and field, the time calculation is carried out according to IAAF rules (always rounding up to the next 1/100th).

6.1.4 Horse Race

<i>₽</i> 1≰@ <u>X</u> 1										OPTIc2Net	- [Horse race]	
File	Timing	Setup	Connection	Sport	Show	Help						
🗱 Туре of	sport Horse	race				*	Banking with precise time +) Tyj ra	Pa of	is fixed to 0.07 is fixed to 0.17 is fixed to 0.20	International method	Finnish method
		1	Type of sports				Ranking method		Hor	se or dog units	Calculation of kil	lometer time

You have several parameters that you can adjust to obtain the country specific results that you need. In many countries there are different values used for the results (e.g. depending on the country a horse length is defined with 0.17 s and other 0.2 s).





6.1.5 Dog Race

File Tir	ning Setu	p Connection	Sport	Show	Help		
Type of sport	Dog race				*	Ranking with precise time	 is fixed to 0.07
							is fixed to 0.17
							is fixed to 0.20
		Type of sports				Ranking method	Horse or dog units

You can adjust the time for a dog length.

6.1.6 Rowing / Canoe

You have several parameters that you can adjust to get the country specific results.

6.1.7 Cycling

You have several parameters that you can adjust to get the country specific results.

6.2 Sports with Individual Starts

The camera can be directed straight to the finish line, as the athletes cannot be occluded by each other. We recommend using the selection <General> under <Type of sport>.



6.3 Track and Field (Athletics)

We recommend using the selection <Track and field with anemometer> or <Track and field without anemometer> under <Type of sport>.

For track and field you should have an angle of the camera to the outside lane of a minimum of 20°. If you have a smaller angle it is possible that athletes occlude each other. The maximal angle should not exceed 50°. The camera has to be directed straight to the finish line.







The easiest way to adjust the camera to the finish line is with the help of the mass start line.

For the example below the camera is situated outside the track. The camera is moved slowly from behind the finish line towards the finish line. If you follow these instructions it should be easy to align the camera with the finish line.





You can learn from the following table the necessary distance of the camera to the nearest lane as well as the necessary camera height for a track with 6 or 8 lanes.

The upper number in each box of the table is the camera angle (see sketch one page back). For a camera with standard lens Z75 and MZ75 at the highest resolution of 1360 pixel this angle should be between 6.8° and 31.4°. If the first stated angle is more than 31.4° it is not possible to capture all athletes in the picture.

The bottom number in each box of the table shows you the angle to the runner on the outer lane. If possible, this angle should be more than 20°, so that the runners cannot be occluded by each other.





The table below shows good camera positions with black (normal figures) numbers for both upper and bottom values. Blue (italic figures) means that the value ranges in a border area, and red (bold figures) means that the camera position with this lens is not recommendable.

	Stadium with 6 tracks (7.32 m)										
	Standard Zoom lens Z75 or MZ75 (12.5 - 75 mm)										
	6 Tracks	Horizontal A									
	U HACKS	3 m	4 m	5 m	6 m	7 m	8 m	9 m			
	3.7 m	42.2°	35.0°	29.4°	25.1°	22.8°	19.1°	17.0°			
	F-STATIV6	11.0°	10.0°	9.22°	8.5°	7.9°	7.4°	7.0°			
	5 m	42.8°	36.5°	31.3°	27.1°	23.8°	20.9°	18.6°			
	511	16.2°	1 4.8 °	13.7	12.7°	11.8°	11.8°	10.4°			
Β	6 m	42.2°	36.8°	32.2°	28.3°	25.0°	22.2°	19.9°			
ca	011	21.2°	19.7°	18.0°	16.7°	1 5.6°	14.6°	13.7°			
Ë	7 m	40.9°	36.4°	32.4 °	28.8°	23.7°	23.1°	20.8°			
Ve	7 111	24.8°	23.8°	22.9°	20.6°	19.2°	18.1°	17.3°			
	9 m	39.3°	35.5°	32 .0°	28.9°	26.1°	23.6°	21.4°			
	0 111	30.2°	27.9°	26.0°	24.2°	22.7°	21.4°	20.19°			
	0 m	37.4°	34.3°	31.4°	28.6°	26.0°	23.8°	21.8°			
	9 m	34.1°	31.7°	29.6°	27.7°	26.0°	24.6°	23.2°			

	Stadium with 8 tracks (9.76 m)											
	8 Tracks		Horizontal A									
	o maono	3 m	4 m	5 m	6 m	7 m	8 m	9 m				
	3,7 m	43.9°	35.7°	29.9°	25.5°	22.1°	19.3°	17.2°				
	F-STATIV6	7.6°	7.0°	6.6°	6.2°	5.8°	5.5°	5.2°				
	5 m	45.8°	39.0°	33.5°	29.0°	25.4°	22.4°	20.0°				
		13.2°	12.3°	11.5°	10.8°	10.1°	9.6°	9.1°				
В	6 m	46.0°	40.1 °	36 .0°	30.8°	27.2°	24.2°	21.6°				
cal	0 111	17.4°	1 6.2°	15.1°	14.2°	13.4°	12.7°	12.0°				
Ţ	7 m	45.4°	40.29 °	35.7°	31.8°	28.4°	25.5°	22.9°				
Ve Ve	7 111	21.4°	20.0°	18.7°	17.6	16.6°	15.7°	14.9°				
	0 m	44.3°	39.9°	35.9°	32.3°	29.1°	26.3°	23.9°				
	0 111	26.2°	23.6°	22.1°	20.8°	19.7°	18.7°	17.7°				
	0 m	42.8°	39.0°	35.6°	32.4°	29.5°	26.8°	24.5°				
	9 M	28.7°	27.0°	25.4°	23.9°	22.7°	21.5°	20.5°				







Finish Line of Athletics Track

The finish line must be painted in white on the track. At the point where the track markings cross each other on the finish line you must have a black marker (see drawing). This marker is necessary so that you see on the monitor the lanes white and the lane markers black (if picture set on black and white mode)

If you have the picture of the track and markers inverse, you are not positioned on the finish line. The camera has an aim to make a rough adjustment.

You have to make the final adjustment on the monitor. For this adjustment we recommend to set the camera picture on the PCmonitor to black and white. If you use the OPTIc2 with a **Tripod F-STATIV6** with a height of 3.66 m for the camera, you should use a wide angle lens for a track with 8 lanes. Otherwise you do not cover all 8 lanes or you are too far away and have a very flat angle with the runners not being captured completely.

Wide Angle Lens L8.5 (8.5 mm)

Stadium with 6 Tracks: Tripod about 1.5 m from the nearest track

Stadium with 8 Tracks: Tripod about 1.7 m from the nearest track







6.3.1 Zero Control for Athletics (Start Control)

There is the possibility to record the flame of the start gun fired on the start line (or flash of the e-Start). With this test the referee can see that the time in the picture is correct without any delay. If you select this mode the start sequence is also recorded.

- Load the prepared "Heat" in the "Timing" container by double click in the meet browser.
- Click on the button <Activate test start on C1>
- Now the next start will be recorded
- Click on <Timing> and select the precision on 1/1000th or 1/1000th
- Prepare the start gun or e-Start as for a normal race at the finish line
- Lay the start gun or e-Start on the finish line and put something dark (e.g. black paper) under the start gun or e-Start (where the smoke comes out of the barrel or the e-Start flashes to get a better contrast)
- Fire start gun or e-Start
- The start shot or flash is automatically recorded and shown in the picture on the screen.

At the start of the flame in the picture the time must show 0.000.

If you move the time cursor inside the flame you must see that the time increases (e.g. 0.001 sec.)



It is possible that the flame/flash is not shown very sharp in the picture. The reason is the pixel lag. Either you must correct the pixel lag or you must switch to the black/white mode.



Switch between color picture with button



picture and black/white

6.3.2 Evaluation for Athletics

If you select athletics the group function will not work. If you make the results by using BIB-evaluation II it is possible to input the bib number or the lane number.

This function is very helpful, if you have a long distance race and the athletes have a side number with the track. In most cases the bib number is not readable, but the track number (side number) is easy to read.







6.4 Horse Races

<u>₩1 \$ % X</u> I								OPTIc2Net - [Horse race]			
File	Timing sport Horse	Setup race	Connection	Sport	Show	Help +	Ranking	with precise time		fixed to 0.07 Type of race + fixed to 0.17	International method
		7	Type of sports					Ranking method		Horse or dog units	Calculation of kilometer time

We recommend using the selection <Horse Race> under <Type of sport>. Please read the description for track and field. For horse races no painted finish line exists, but there might be a mirror that should be focused on.

As the picture of a photo finish camera always shows the same pixels it is often difficult to focus correctly on the finish line. We recommend the following trick:

- Set the camera with the sight in front of the finish line
- Activate the race mode and record
- Move the camera slowly in running direction over the finish line (e.g. move the gear head with constant speed in horizontal direction)
- A normal (deformed) picture of the finish area is originated
- Print that part of the picture that shows the finish line
- End the race and start the test mode
- Move the camera until the pixels show a similar pattern as in the area of the finish line in the printed picture.
- If a mirror is installed, test if the mirror is also captured by the camera when someone moves across the finish line.

For horse races it is possible to adjust different sport specific adjustments for the evaluation (e.g. horse units or kilometer time).

6.5 Dog Races

We recommend using the selection <Dog Race> under <Type of sport>. Please read the description for track and field. For dog races no painted finish line exists. Read the above section of horse races and adjust the camera as described as well for dog races.

6.6 Rowing or Canoe

We recommend using the selection <Rowing / Canoe> under <Type of sport>.

Please follow the instructions for athletics and horse racing. For rowing and canoeing you have no finish line and the buoys are often not fixed exactly on the finish line. If possible, have the buoys adjusted so they are exactly on the finish line. This facilitates adjustment and evaluation a lot (lane identification).

Usually, a finish line is situated on the opposite shore on which the photo finish camera is focused. If the camera is aligned with this line it can be swiveled vertically until all lanes are displayed.

6.7 Cycling Races

We recommend using the selection <Cycling> under <Type of sport> when you do the photo finish for a cycling race.

The result list for street cycling needs a special way to show the time. It shows riders that arrive in a group with a group time, but the ranking is by arrival order. The OPTIc2NET software allows doing this automatically.

When you do the evaluation for each rider the run times are written in the column "Run Times". If you activate the column <Time (Cycle)> as well a column appears with the times



Photo Finish OPTIc2.NET



that are important for cycling (including group times). You can input the gap for the group time by clicking on the menu <Setup>, than <Heat list setting> and then input the gap for the <Cycle Time>. With this gap you set the time difference for the group. A rider that has more delay to the previous finisher than the gap in this field will have a new time, if he is within this gap time he will be listed in the same group of riders.

The factory setup for the Cycle Time (gap) is 1 second.

a 🗴 👻	×							OPTIc2Net - [General]
File	Timing	Setup	Connection	Sport	Show	Help	Import a comen laugust	Heat list sattings
Canguag	je i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	sir - onited 3	Juates		Camera	Distribution Box -	Export a screen layout Export a list layout	Cycle time:
		Langua	ge		OPT	Tc2 devices	Layouts	00:00:01:0000 (2)
Jest 1410	021 X							

Example of a Printed Result List for Cycling:

			Cycling Luste Luste Wettkampf (R. C.	Date: 29.06.201/ Start time: 13.55:00		
Location: Organizer: Session name: Number:		Lustenau-Center Street Races 1.1.1		Distance: Actual start time:	25000 13:37:50		
A			æ	-	8	to the	
Tunn	uų	denderderderderde	nichinichedia	dratinedra	udrahadrah	nteritettettett	upp
Rank	Bib	Name	Nation	Code	Cycle time	Average speed	Disq
1	285	COHEN Susan	GBR	GBR19571031	28:36.3233	41.95 [km/e]	
2	289	BELL Tracy	GBR	GBR19640117	5.00	41,94 [km/e]	
3	282	JOHNSON Kimberly	USA	USA19561007	e.,	41,94 [km/e]	
5	208	LAKES Anne	GRP	GBR19560105	4.4	41.92 [km/o]	
6	287	MILLER Catherine	GBR	GBR19600505	2,0	41,92 [km/e]	
7	284	ANDERSON Marion	NOR	NOR19600123	4.10	41,92 [km/e]	
8	290	HRUBESCH Christine	GER	GER19621029	e.,->	41,91 [km/e]	
9	283	KÖNIG Brigitte	GER	GER19591101	2.9616	41,88 [km/e]	
10	316	FRANZ Maria	GER	GER19491126	5:49:3716	34,86 (km/e)	
11	319	SCHLEPPER Elizabeth	AUS	AUS19441022	2,,5	34,85 [km/e]	
12	313	LAHM Doris	GER	GER19540606	4.,2	34,85 [km/a]	
13	314	BELINDA Apatia	USA	BEL19340514	8-01 4179	34.85 [km/e]	
15	291	FLAVRE Martine	FRA	FRA19590727	9:49.0536	31.23 [km/e]	
16	311	JASON Maria	GER	GER19521222	10:29.2441	30,70 [km/e]	
17	361	HEINRICH Brunhilde	GER	GER19330121	16:37.8880	26.53 [km/e]	
18	370	MIGRET Paula	FRA	FRA19340716	6.0	26,52 [km/e]	
19	367	HÖLLER Julia	AUT	AUT19340712	19:00:0114	25,21 [km/e]	
20	374	CATTANEO Francesca	ITA	ITA 19340916	2.2	25,21 [km/e]	
21	312	VAN BASTEN Andrea	NED	NED19440917	20.37.9152	24,37 [km/e]	
22	371	VAN BYTON Sarah	BEL	BEL19340326	24:03:1859	22,79 (km/e)	
24	305	PROSEON Frederica	AUS	EPA 10300708	24-08 8657	22.79 [km/6]	
24	379	TOZZI Roberta	ITA	TA19331126	24.00.0007	22,76 [km/e]	
26	356	BALLE Andera	BEL	BEL19340914	6.0	22.76 (km/e)	
27	363	DELGADO Anne	ESP	ESP19340520	24 09.9160	22,74 [km/e]	
28	3	PINOLT Fabienne	FRA	FRA19551003	27:18:3524	21,46 [km/e]	
29	26	FETISOV Valeriya	RUS	RUS19571213	29.00.3052	20/83 [km/e]	
30	364	MOSER Enka	AUT	AUT19331024	29:41 2527	20,59 [km/e]	
31	366	PIRLO Gina	ITA	ITA19290402	0.0	20,58 [km/e]	
52	3/2	MICHIN Tatiana	ESP DIP	ESP19281221 BLD10531200	0.0	20,58 [Km/e]	Diec
	205	SZARO Susanna	POL	POI 19501226			ONE
	176	KRUTOV Minalda	RUS	RUS19500603			DNF
	353	MACNEELY Patricia	IRL	IRL19320225			DNE
	198	SAVAGE Paula	CAN	CAN19531122			DNF
	359	LIZARAZU Fabienne	FRA	FRA19340407			DNF
	281	BELMONDO Jutta	BEL	BEL19570427			DNS
		COM	HORNBACH	bodum	LUZERN		

Otherwise please follow the instructions for athletics and horse racing.





7 Setting of the Camera

7.1 Possible Camera Settings

A Scan rate:

The photo finish scans the finish line. Set how many lines per second you want scanned (settings between 100 and 3000 lanes per second).

B Pixel lag:

The pixel lag is a delay between red, green and blue sensor of the CCD-chip. If you set the pixel lag at zero and the scan rate is correctly adjusted, you obtain a homogenous picture. If the scan rate is not correctly set or the "Coming from" (N) is incorrect, the picture will not be congruent.

C Power Supply:

It shows the supply voltage of the camera. The value must always be above 9 V.

D Regulator and Desired Value: If you activate the regulator it adjusts the brightness automat-

ically to the <Desired value>. The automatic brightness adjustment works only in a limited area. This function controls the digital gain (I) automatically. If you want to change the adjustable value you can use the arrows form the Desired Value to set a new reference setting.

-40 50

A

B

F

E Noise Level:

The nose level is an important indicator for the quality of the picture. The lower the noise level the fewer noises you have in the picture. The noise level is also very important for the automatic recording < Motion detection>. At a noise level of 40 or higher is motion detection almost impossible.

F Intensity of the Colors:

R = Red, G = Green, B = BlueThe color modulation is shown. Colors can be adjusted by using levers (H), (I) and (J).

G Intensity – Brightness:

It shows the level of brightness (small bar = dark picture, large bar = bright picture). You can adjust the brightness at the lens or with the lever (K).





Y.



7.2 Sensor Adjustments



H Lever for Red:

To adjust the red color of the camera. At daylight we recommend to leave red adjustment on 40.

I Lever for Green:

To adjust the green color of the camera. At daylight we recommend to leave green adjustment in the middle on 50.

J Lever for Blue:

To adjust the blue color of the camera. At daylight we recommend to leave the blue adjustment in the middle on 50.

K Intensity/Brightness:

Electronic brightness adjustment. If possible do not move this lever all the way to the top or bottom. Such an adjustment will influence the picture quality in a negative way.

L Gain:

The brightness can be enhanced electronically. The adjusted value should be 1 if possible. If you have too low light conditions at this gain range you go up with the value until you have the best possible picture quality.

M Coming from (Finish Direction):

This adjustment is very important to have the competitors recorded correctly in the picture. "Coming from left" means the competitors run into the finish from the left side (seen from the camera).

If you select the finish direction incorrectly this results in a pixel delay between the red, green and blue sensor. The bibs would then be shown mirror-inverted.

N Exposure:

At good light conditions leave this on <day>. At bad light conditions (at night) select <night>. Together with the <gain range> you can adjust the best picture quality at low light level.





7.3 Camera Configuration

CON FIG



O Recording lines:

It is possible to adjust the recorded lines before and after triggering when using a photocell. This adjustment is very important for many sports in order to obtain a picture of the whole competitor.

Recording lines <before> recommendation for most sports: 140 pixels
Recording lines <after> recommendation for most sports: 100 pixels

P Motion detection:

It is possible to execute the automatic picture recording by changes in the picture. In order to get the best possible result it is possible to make some adjustments. Area of the sensor that you want to check:

Adjust the area of the sensor that you want to use for recording. Therefore it is necessary to adjust the pixels used for recording. Often you do not want to use the lower or upper pixels, since there is something unstable in the picture (e.g. spectators or flags that move). The sensor has 1360 vertical pixel. The counting starts with pixel 1 on the bottom and ends with pixel 1360 on the top.

<check (<1360):<="" pixel="" th="" to=""><th>Top pixel that you want to use for the movement recognition</th></check>	Top pixel that you want to use for the movement recognition
<check (="" from="" pixel="">1):</check>	Bottom pixel that you want to use for the movement recogni- tion
<diff. (10)="" value="">:</diff.>	Fine tuning for motion detection. A good reference value is 10 (works very well in most conditions). The lower you go with the <diff. value="">, the more sensitive the recording gets (less pixel changes).</diff.>
<threshold (12)="">:</threshold>	Fine tuning for motion detection. This value you should change only if you have big problems. In general keep the <threshold> on value 12.</threshold>





7.4 Motor Zoom Lens Adjustment



When using an *A*LGE-TIMING Motor Zoom Lens it is possible to control it directly from the OPTIc2NET software. Adjustable are focus, iris and zoom.

Please note that the adjustment of each function works very slowly (smooth adjustment) at the beginning and speeds up the longer you click on the button.



Q Focus:

<near>: to have the best focus for objects near to the camera
<far>: to have the best focus for objects far from the camera

R Iris:

dark>: opens the iris to brighten up the picture

dark>: closes the iris to darken the picture

S Zoom:

<small>: zooms out of the picture (wide angle) <large>: zooms into the picture to enlarge objects

T Electronic Brightness Adjustment:

It is possible to electronically adjust the brightness. Ideal adjustment is in the middle, so this also allows automatic brightness adjustment.





7.5 Electronic Gear Head Adjustment

When using an *A*LGE-TIMING Electronic Gear Head 410-E it is possible to control it directly from the OPTIc2NET software. Adjustable are pan, tilt and roll.

¥.

Please note that the adjustment of each function works very slowly (smooth adjustment) at the beginning and speeds up the longer you click on the button.



U Pan:

<left>: camera moves to the left<right>: camera moves to the right

V Tilt:

<up>: camera moves up <down>: camera moves down

W Roll:

<left>: camera rolls to the left<right>: camera rolls to the right





7.6 Image Adjustment

The camera is a line scan camera, which means it takes pictures by scanning the finish line not by taking a complete picture like normal cameras.

- 1. Connect OPTIc2 camera to PC via IEEE1394 cable, network or glass fiber optical cable.
- 2. Connect external devices for start and finish.
- 3. Connect power supply for OPTIc2 camera (green LED "ready" must be on).
- 4. Start OPTIc2NET software on PC.
- 5. The preview picture <Cam preview> shows the live camera scan picture.
- 6. Adjust scan rate (A) (this is a sport specific value that is special for each sport or stadium). It depends on the speed of the object, the distance, and the zoom value (focal length).
- 7. Set <Pixel lag> (B) on zero. This adjustment is optimal, if the scan rate is corresponding with the actual speed.
- Depending on the brightness of the picture that you see on the monitor set the brightness of the lens or do it electronically in the <Camera dialog> (R).
- 9. Aim the camera at the finish line by looking along the sight (13, page 6).
- Adjust the focus at zoom lens or for a motor zoom through software at <Focus> (Q)
- 11. Adjust the section of the lens that you want on the screen with zoom for a zoom lens. When us-



ing a motor zoom adjust it from the software with <Zoom> (S).

- 12. Adjust camera that it scans the finish line and that it records the picture including the complete finish line and everybody moving through it.
- 13. Check if you are on the finish line by clicking in the <Cam preview> window on k (Set to black and white).

Can	n preview	X
1		
	Set to black and white	

14. Readjust the focus of the camera.





8 Software OPTIc2NET

The software for the OPTIc2NET runs with Windows XP, Windows Vista, Windows 7, Windows 8 and Windows 8.1.

If you record with the OPTIc2NET software you should close all other programs. These other programs can block tasks, processor power or use the hard disk. This could reduce the stability and recording time of the OPTIc2 system.

If the OPTIc2 PC is not operated in a network we also recommend closing the antivirus software. Make sure that at least such software should not start an automatic check of the hard disk during the photo finish operation.

The OPTIc2NET is designed in the Windows standard look and tries to follow the rules for Windows programming. This makes the operation for Windows experienced users very easy.

Most functions of the OPTIc2NET are integrated in the menu bar.



The most important functions are in the icon list on the left screen border.

8.1 Icon List







8.2 Footer

The footer is a status bar that shows the connected devices of the system and some basic information.





Distribution Box OCD2

If a Distribution Box OCD2 is connected, this symbol must have a green background. If no Distribution Box is integrated into the system the background is red.

When clicking with the left mouse button on this icon a pull down menu opens to adjust some OCD2 functions.



OPTIc2 Camera

This icon must be green for confirming a working communication with the camera. If the icon is red there is no communication between PC and camera. Then check the connection of the camera, if the camera has power supply (green LED "ready" must be on), or if the driver for the IEEE1394 connection is working.

When clicking with the left mouse button on this icon, a pull down menu opens where you get to the camera dialog (camera adjustment).



IDCam

This icon is red if you have no IDCam connected. It is yellow if the connection with the IDCam is activated but communication is not successful. It is green if the communication with the IDCam software works.

When clicking with the left mouse button on this icon, a pull down menu opens to adjust some IDCam-functions.



Timy

Timy that is used for the anemometer if the sport "Track and field with anemometer" is activated. If the Timy is connected by USB and a communication from the OPTIc2NET-software with the Timy is successful a green background of the Timy button is shown. Otherwise the background is red (no communication with Timy).



F8 Rec

When clicking with the left mouse button on this icon, a picture is recorded (it does not matter if you have the camera ready for a heat or not, the recording will be in the meeting picture anyhow). The recording duration is as long as you press with the left mouse button on this icon. When the system records, the icon changes its background from green to red. The icon is gray if no camera is connected (no recording is possible).





8.3 Menus of the Software

The OPTIc2 software has sub menus as is usual for Windows software.

8.3.1 Menu <File>



The menu <File> includes as in most Windows programs tools to open, save, print, etc.

Select recording meet

ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing meet
Ing me

It shows all open files in the OPTIc2NET program and you can select in which meeting you can record races. Only one meeting can be used for recording purpose.

The meeting that is selected for recording shows the following symbol:

Create new meet...



Before you start to work with the OPTIc2NET you need to create a new meeting. A meeting can be a single race or a series of competitions (e.g. meeting over several days). In this meet all the data of the meeting is stored. The meeting is split in four sections (Meet, Session, Events, and Heats).

Example:

Meet:Spring-MeetingSession:Day 1Event:100 m QualificationHeat:Heat1

Load existing meet

G

If you want to continue to work in an existing meet (e.g. next day's sessions) you have to open this meet. You have to open a meet as well if you want to see results of this meet (e.g. after a protest when you are already in another meet).

Delete Meet

It is possible to delete meets. When deleting a meet you lose all information about this meet including all recorded images.

Import Meet

1

It is possible to import a meet that was recorded on another PC with the OPTIc2NET software.



Photo Finish OPTIc2.NET



Export Meet



It is possible to export a meet (including all images) so you can import it on another PC.

Print



You can print lists for the race (heat). The list can e.g. be a start list, bib list or result list. Each list can have an integrated picture.

Save

Save the currently open meet.

Exit

Exit the OPTIc2NET software.

8.3.2 Menu <TIMING>

A 2 2	×!					-	
File	Timing	Set	tup	Connection	Sport	Show	Help
	0.1X1 Prec	ision	1/100	000	*		
Synchronize master timer							
Timer		Run	time o	alculation			

In the menu <Timer> it is possible to make a synchronization of the timer (e.g. with other timing devices) and to select the precision that is used for the calculated run time.

Timer - Synchronize master timer:

The master timer is either the camera or Distribution Box OCD2. In case you do not make synchronization it automatically takes the time of the PC. If you want to executed an external synchronization you can enter the time of day and then effect a start impulse through channel c0 (Start). After you have input the preloaded time click on <ENTER>. Now the icon changes from 🔤 to 💺.

Preload time		2
استثناء	Enter	Ð
Day time:		
	0	

If you click on <Show this dialog at program start> it automatically asks for a synchronization when starting the OPTIc2NET software.

Run time calculation - Precision:

PREC It is possible to select the precision that is used for the calculated run time. Select between: 1/10th

0.183

- 1/100th
- 1/1000th
- 1/10000th

The run time is calculated from the start time and finish time. The start and finish times are always used in highest precision with 1/10000th seconds for the calculation of the run time. After the calculation of the run time the run time is converted to the adjusted precision.





8.3.3 Menu <Setup>

▲ 含义!						OPTIc2Net - [Ger	neral]			
File	Timing	Setup	Connection	Sport	Show	Help				
Languag	je 🔛 Engli	sh - United S	States		* Camera	Distribution Box +	Import a screen layout	Export a screen layout	Import a Export a list layout list layout	Heat list settings +
		Langua	ge		OPT	TIc2 devices	Scree	en layouts	Heat list layouts	Other settings

In the menu <Setup> you can adjust several settings for the software and hardware.

8.3.3.1 Language

Select the language of the software and printed lists. At the moment you can select the following languages:



The language selection menu is always in English so that everybody can still read it if the software is e.g. in Japanese!

8.3.3.2 OPTIc2 devices

Here you can adjust the OPTIc2 hardware such as the camera OPTIc2 or the distribution box OCD2.

Camera

See point 7 "Setting the Camera".

Distribution Box

In case you use a distribution box (see OPTIC2 accessory) you can adjust as follows:

Start:



Select which channels are used for a start impulse. Usual C0 is used for start. Further you can select if you receive the start impulse by cable or radio.

Attention: A radio start with an *ALGE-TIMING* radio device (e.g. TED or WTN) has an exact delay of 0.1 seconds. In order to correct this delay you have to select the option radio connection for start.




Record:



Select which channels are used for recording. Usual C1 is used for recording.

Setting:

Start	Record	Settings	
Anem	ometer:		
Oove	er OCD2		
o ove	er timy		

For Athletics it is possible to connect an anemometer at the photo finish system OPTIc2. In case you use the Distribution Box OCD2 you have the possibility to connect the anemometer *A*LGE Windspeed WS2 directly at the distribution box or through a Timy directly at the PC.

8.3.3.3 Screen Layout



The layout of the screen is completely adjustable. You can dock-in or dock-out windows as you want. You can store your favorite layout(s) so that it takes just a click to go back to it.

Import a screen layout

It is possible to load the default layout or a layout that the operator created himself.

Export a screen layout

It is possible to store the present layout of the screen.

8.3.3.4 List Layout (Heat List)



Import a list layout

It is possible to load the default layout of a heat list or a layout that the operator created himself.

Export a list layout

It is possible to store the present layout of the heat list.





8.3.3.5 Other Settings

Heat List Setting

So far the only adjustment is the Cycle Time under <Other settings> and <Heat List Setting>.

Cycle Time

For the result list for street cycling needs a special way to show the time. It shows riders that arrive in a group with a group time, but the ranking is by arrival order. The OP-TIc2NET software allows doing this automatically.

When you do the evaluation for each rider it will write the run times in the column "Run Times". If you activate as well the column <Time (Cycle)> it will show you a column with the times that are important for cycling (including group times). The gap for the group time you can input by clicking on the



menu <Setup>, than <Heat list setting> and then input the gap for the <Cycle Time>. With this gap you set the time difference for the group. A rider that has more delay to the previous

finisher than the gap in this field will have a new time, if he is within this gap time he will be listed in the same group of riders.

It is possible to switch each cycle time between the gap and the symbol for same time by clicking on the arrow behind each time in the column.

Run time	Cycle time
28:36.3	28:36.3
28:36.7	
28:36.8	~
28:36.5	0.3
28:37.4	~-

The factory setup for the Cycle Time (gap) is 1 second.

8.3.4 Menu <Connection>

File	Timing	Setup	Connection	Sport	Show	Help
Connect IDCam	Setup IDCam *	Run time Run time Automatic Day time	Bift day ti	me [sec]	5 :	
IDO	lam		Alge displa	ау		

IDCam

See point 15 "Integration of IDCam".

ALGE display

and 1 - 100 - 3 (5-1

Tto activate different modes for the ALGE-TIMING display board (D-LINE or GAZ).

Run Time

The running time of the active race that has the <Finish> focus is shown.

Automatic

The running time of the active race that has the <Finish> focus is shown. ^{IMM} If there is no running time the stopped time is shown for the duration of the <Hold time>. After this hold time duration, the time of day is shown until a new running time is active or until you activate a new race.

Time of Day

The display board shows the time of day (hours and seconds).

AUTO

0





8.3.5 Menu <Sport>

str 🛓 🍋 🔀		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				OPTIc2Net	- [General]	
File Tin	ning Setup	Connection	Sport	Show	Help			
X Type of sport	General				*	🛱 Ranking	with precise time	
		Type of sports					Ranking method	

See point 6.1 "Selection of Sport".

8.3.6 Menu <Show>

a 🛓	1 C 🕺							
File	e Ti	ming	Setup	C	onnection	Sport	Show	Help
			6	3	63		1	
Log	Time	Docking	Sh	ow	Color	Time	Evaluation	
file	window	+			-	cursor *	lines *	
	Display wir	ndows	Time	e jum	p markers	Evaluat	tion colors	

Display Windows

Log File



If you activate the <Show message dialog> a log-file that records everything that happens to the system is shown. This file is very important for ALGE-TIMING in case of problems.

Time Window



A window opens that shows the net time of a race (it is marked with the evaluation line)

Docking

In case you lose a window of the OPTIc2NET software it is possible to get it back by clicking on <Docking>. If is shown next to the docking window, the window is shown on the screen. If this sign is not shows (empty), the docking window is not visible. To make it visible, click on the docking window.

		inter.	Catur	Car	marting	Court	Chaut	Hala
		iming	Setup	Cor	inection	sport	Show	нер
					N	80		
Show	/ message	Show time	e Do	ckable	Show	Color		
	Dis	play window	NS @	Quentie	uie	np markers		
₽ Sp	ring-Meetir	ng X Sp	itz 📀	View 1	A.A.			
SET -	Overview: 6	0m - Heat (4	4)	View 2		1		
	16:11:48	.0297		Meet br	owser		G3278 C	3561 R0
to	o t		\odot	Heat lis	t			
128 LANE	32		\odot	Impulse	Log			





Time jump markers

Show



If the camera does not record continuously a picture and has missing parts in the picture because no athlete passed at this time, a <Time Jump Marker> can be visible in on the screen.



Picture with <Time Jump Markers>



Picture without <Time Jump Markers>

Set Color



It is possible to select the color of the <Time Jump Marker>.

File	Ti	ming Se	tup Co	onnection	Sport	Show	Help
og ile	Time window	Docking •	Show	Color	Time cursor *	Evaluation lines +	
Di	isplay win	idows	Time jun	Auto	omatic	1 colors	
5		1					0

Evaluation Colors

It is possible to select the color of the <Time cursor> and <Evaluation lines>

<u> / 1 本 令 </u> 米 !		<u> #1本帝</u> 米1	
File Timing Setup Connection	Sport Show Help	File Timing Setup Connection	Sport Show Help
Log Time Docking Show Color	Time cursor •	Log file window	Time cursor + lines +
Display windows Time jump markers	 Automatic 	Display windows Time jump markers	Evaluat Automatic
	More Colors		More Colors





8.3.7 Menu <Help>



In the menu <Help> you can see the current version number of the software and you get to the manual of the software. The manual will be shown as a pdf-file. You can also open the manual by pressing the key <F1>.

If you press on the arrow behind the software version it will open a table that shows all the information about the software and hardware of the system.

	- 64		
Name	Version	Date	Additional
OPTIc2Net	14101	23.10.2014	OPTIc2sys driver 2310
OCD2 Software	14.A1	14.10.2014	
OCD2 Hardware	13.41	15.04.2013	Production date: M07-Y12 Serial number: 60
Cam1 Software	14.A1	14.10.2014	
Cam1 Hardware	13.41	15.04.2013	Production date: M00-Y00 Serial number: 1





9 Evaluation Windows

The software OPTIc2NET allows you to see the photo finish picture in three different windows. The window <View 1> is the main picture in which you make the evaluation. The window <View 2> can be used e.g. as zoom window, where you see the part of the picture that you evaluate in a bigger scale. The window <Overview> is used to show long recordings on a small scale to have a good overview of the total picture.

All three pictures are linked with each other. If you double click in one picture, the others show the same picture in the adjusted scale.

9.1 View 1

This is the main picture that you must use for evaluation. You can adjust the zoom scale that is ideal for you. Please note that if you use a zoom scale below 100% you are not able to adjust the Time Cursor with the highest precision. Therefore, it would be good to have the view 2 on a zoom scale of 100% or more and to check the Time Cursor in View 2 as well.



In the header of <View 1> you see the <event name> and <heat name>.

In the top status line you can see:

17:56:54.5971

Time of day of the position of the <Time Cursor>

Center Function: If you double click in another "evaluation window", the position of the mouse is used as center for the picture shown in <View 1>.

Zoom 60%

Pull down menu to adjust the zoom factor of <View 1>. It is also possible to zoom in and out with the wheel bar of the mouse.



Menu to setup the lanes (see also 6.3 Track and Field (Athletics)).

If you activate this icon the latest recording is always shown immediately. This function is used if the photo finish system is used as back-





up without a person that will evaluate a picture without any certain reason (e.g. protest).

In you click on $\stackrel{\text{def}}{=}$ it the picture is shown in black and white. To change back to color click again on $\stackrel{\text{def}}{=}$.

*

If you click on $\frac{1}{2}$ you can adjust the brightness, contrast and gamma of the recorded picture. These adjustments apply to all evaluation windows.

Brightness	 0 %	Validation:	
-		Whole image	Original
Contrast	 +7 %	O Upper image part	Border line
Gamma	 2,21	O cover mage pare	0 🛟

If you click on <Whole image> the adjustments are carried out for the complete picture. It is possible to adjust only the upper or lower part of the picture. This is necessary, if you have e.g. half of the picture in the shadow, the other half in the sun. In order to adjust this you have to input the <Border line>. This is the border pixel of your picture. The lowest pixel is 1, the topmost pixel is 1360. If you adjust e.g. 680 this is the exact middle of the picture. Now you select <Upper image part> for adjusting the upper picture part, or <Lower image part> for editing the lower picture part.

Use this to adjust the "Pixel Lag" if the scan rate is not well adjusted or if the competitors reach the finish with a speed that is too fast or too slow. The pixel lag is also adjustable globally (also for future recordings; see chapter 7.1 Possible Camera Settings:). The adjustments you always apply to all evaluation windows.

When you click on this icon the picture that is shown right now in <View 1> is exported.

9.2 View 2

In View 2 the same picture of the recorded image as in View 1 is shown, but you can adjust another zoom factor (e.g. zoom factor to see a part of the picture with a higher resolution). It is not possible to evaluate a race in View 2.

9.3 Overview

In Overview you can zoom in up to 5% of the original picture. It is used as overview for races with long recording time. When adjusting a finish line we recommend to control the adjustment by switching on black/white $\widehat{\ensuremath{\otimes}}$.





10 Timing (Timing Window)

Before you start a race you should start the timing window with the heat that you want to start and execute the timing. It is possible to start several heats in the timing window (e.g. for rowing events when more races are on the water at the same time).

- Before you start a race you need to establish a race structure in the meet browser (see chapter 13 Meet Browser).
- Double click on the heat that you want to open in the meet browser.
- The timing window comes up showing the selected heat.
- If the bar of a heat in the Timing window is yellow (see below), it means that you show the picture of this heat in the Overview window, View 1 window and View 2 window. Otherwise the bar is light blue.

A Event	t (1) - Heat	(1)			x
Start	Display	REC	Start time:	Ru	nning time:
i	Real Property lies	1	* *	- 0	0:00:00.0000
Dis	tance:		Intermediate time:	Di	splay time:
	0		-	-	0:00:00

Start



When you click on this button it changes to another icon. Each icon has a different function.

- k Х
- Start is ready. The starter can start this heat at any time.
- Start is blocked. If you receive a start impulse the time does not start.
- Race is started

To make a false start (reset the race so another start is possible). This icon is only shown if you move the mouse over the icon 2

Display



With this function you select the display board. If more than one started heat is active in the <Timing> window you have to select which time of the two heats you want to show on the display board. In case you have only one race started you can blank the display board by clicking on this icon.



Display board (GAZ or D-LINE) is active for this heat. In the field <Display time> the time is shown like it is shown on the ALGE display board.

Display board (GAZ or D-LINE) is inactive for this race. If no other race has the focus the display is blank.



Photo Finish OPTIc2.NET



REC (Record Photo finish)



It is possible to allocate more than one heat to the recording focus (this means it can record photo finish pictures at the same time to different heats).

- When the button shows **4**, the camera records as soon as it gets a recording impulse (photocell, push button, F8-key, motion detection).
- If it changes to **k** it is recording (this button is shown as long as the recording goes on).
- When the button shows 🛣, the camera does not record at all.

Start time

In this field the start time of the heat is shown.

When you press on the left arrow the list of start impulses opens. In case you missed a start impulse or if you have to correct the start impulse you can select the right start impulse in this list. Double click the selected start time and confirm with <YES> to import the new start time.

C Timing [Spring-Mee	ting is the recor	ding meet]	-	23 🗉	
Rec 🖀 💐 🖕 🍐 🖕	1				
Wettkampf (1) - Lauf (3)		_	_	x	
Start Display Rec	Start time:	Ru	n time:		
	14:21:54.969	6	37:03	3	
2	Date 🛛 Ti	me of day / 🏹	Name V	Type ▽ Rec ▽	-
Distance:	23.06.2014	8:56:10.9000	tCO	Start	
0	25.06.2014	8:56:42.9000	tCO	Start	
	25.06.2014	9.43:40.9000	tC0	Start	-
The free hard disk space is 290525	25.06.2014	9:50:52.9000	tCO	Start	
	25.06.2014	12:05:34.0803	tC0	Start	
	25.06.2014	12:05:51.6846	tCO	Start	

When you press the right arrow you can key in a manual start time.



Running time

In this field the running time of the heat is shown. The time never stops if you have a start impulse.

Distance

In this field you can input the distance in meters. This is important for some calculations (e.g. average speed).

Intermediate time: No function yet!

Display time

It shows the time that is shown on the display board. If it shows no time for the current heat you might not have the focus on this heat (\checkmark) or you switched on time of day (0).





10.1 Tool Bar of the Timing Window:

0	Timing [Test 141021 is the recording meet]	
REC 🖀	 V 💌 💩 🍐 	
₩ Eve	ent (1) - Heat (1)	×
Star	t Display REC Start time: Runn	ing time:

Motion Detection

When you activate the <Motion Recording> it automatically records a photo finish when the picture is changing. More information you will find in chapter 9.1.4 Motion Detection.

Motion Detection to Display Board

When you activate the <Motion Detection to Display Board> the time of the display board stops by the impulses of the motion detection. If this function is off, the display board does not stop when you have a recording by motion detection. This function is only possible if <Motion Detection 2> is on.

Display Board Stop

When it shows for each photocell impulse. When it shows keeping the display board continues to run after a stop impulse.

Teststart (C0)

When you activate the <Teststart> in a heat the start is recorded. For Track and Field events that are held under IAAF rules it is mandatory to make a teststart before the meeting to prove that the timing device starts exactly at zero. You can find further information under point 5.3.1 Zero Control for Athletics (Start Control).

Activate Recording when Loading Heat

When it shows the icon 📲 it will activate the recoding when loading a new heat in the empty Timing window. When is shows the icon **K** it will deactivate the recording, when loading a new heat in the empty Timing window.

Radio Start

The start impulse can be transmitted from the start to the photo finish system by cable or by radio. If it is transmitted by cable there is no delay. If you transmit it by radio it has a delay. When using an ALGE-TIMING radio (TED or WTN) there is an exact delay of 0.1 seconds. If you activate the <Radio start> it automatically corrects the 0.1 delay of the radio impulse.

Manual Start Impulse

If you press this button you trigger a manual start impulse.

Manual Intermediate Impulse

If you press this button you trigger a manual intermediate impulse.

Manual Stop Impulse

If you press this button you trigger a manual stop impulse.





Page 46





10.2 Photo Finish Recording

There are several possibilities to do the photo finish recording. It can be done manually by pressing the key <F8> or a push button, or automatically by a photocell or motion detection in the picture data.

Normally, the recording channel for external impulses is C1. When using a Distribution Box OCD2 it is possible to select the recording channel (C1, C4 or C7).

Recording lines:

It is possible to adjust the recorded lines before and after the trigger impulse. This adjustment is very important for many sports to obtain a picture of the whole competitor. The adjustment is made in the "Camera dialog".

<Lines before> recommendation for most sports: 140 pixels

F8

<Lines after> recommendation for most sports: 100 pixels

10.2.1 Manual Recording



No timing window is open:

If you press $\langle F8 \rangle$ on the keyboard of the PC, it records the picture to the total picture of the meeting. To evaluate such a picture, open the heat that you need in the timing window. Click on the symbol \bowtie (pictures of this heat). Now it changes to the symbol \leadsto (pictures of the complete meeting). It is now possible to evaluate the time in your heat.

A timing window is open:

The picture in the heat that is open in the timing window is recorded.

10.2.2 Push Button Recording

It is possible to connect a push button at the camera (red and black banana socket - stop) or Distribution Box OCD2 (red and black banana socket – C1-A) for manual recording.

10.2.3 Photocell Recording

It is possible to connect a photocell at the camera (red and black banana socket – stop or DIN-plug) or Distribution Box OCD2 (red and black banana socket – C1-A or DIN-plug). The photocell is set up at the finish line so each competitor that goes through the finish also triggers the photocell. The advantage of the photocell is that you have automatic recording of pictures with an ideal recording duration and you have an accurate finish time on the display board.

10.2.4 Motion Detection



The motion detection works with changes of the picture. The camera compares the pixels from pixel line to pixel line and if there are changes in the pixels it starts to record.

In the camera dialog under configuration it is possible to adjust the pixels of the camera for the motion detection. This is very important for a good result, since there is often movement in the background that you do not want to use for your recording (e.g. flags, moving spectators). The camera has vertically 1360 pixels.

According mics	1 aller
before	atter
200 📩	200 *
Motion detection: Ch	neck
Motion detection: Cl to pixel (<1360)	neck Diff. Value (10)
Motion detection: Cr to pixel (<1360) 1300	neck Diff. Value (10) 10
Motion detection: Ch to pixel (<1360) 1300 🛟	Diff. Value (10)
Motion detection: Cr to pixel (<1360) 1300 C from pixel (>1)	neck Diff. Value (10) 10 C

When using the motion detection it is possible to select if you want to write the impulse time to the display board or if the display board ignores impulses from the motion detection. To output it on the display board press the button



11 Evaluation of Races

The photo finish picture is not a usual picture. It scans the finish line. The scan rate is adjustable. Each scan (each real pixel in horizontal direction) has a different time. If you scan e.g. with 1000 lanes per second each pixel has a difference of 1/1000th seconds. For an exact evaluation you should use the scan factor of 100%. If you scan out of a picture you do not have the complete accuracy!

If a finish picture is shown on the monitor you press the left mouse button and move the mouse over the screen. Together with the mouse cursor the finish line moves. The time is shown in the "Time Window".

With key \boxminus you can move the finish line pixel by pixel to the left, with \boxdot to the right. The color of the finish line can be changed so that it has a good contrast in the picture with the function "System" and "Color of time line".

11.1 Time Window

A freely movable time window is automatically shown. This window only shows the time of the evaluation (not the running time).

To evaluate a picture three different modes are possible:

Use the **Manual Evaluation** if you want to transfer the time to any individual competitor in the competitor list (normally not used).

Use the **Lane Evaluation** if every competitor has his own lane (e. g. for sprint races in athletics, rowing, and canoeing).

Use the **Bib Evaluation** if you can read (or have registered) each start number of the finish arrival (e. g. long distance races of athletics, cycling, horse races)

11.2 Manual Evaluation

You select the manual evaluation by clicking with the mouse on the button in the icon bar. Mark the competitor in the heat list that you want to evaluate by clicking on \checkmark . The field of the competitor is marked in orange color. Press the left mouse button and move the time line to the competitor that you want to evaluate. As soon as you press the right mouse button it transfers the time to the marked competitor in the competitor list.







11.3 Lane Evaluation



If each competitor runs in fixed lanes (e. g. sprint races in athletics) it is the easiest way to use the track identification for the evaluation.

- Adjust the camera so you see all tracks as you need it for the race (leave enough space on the top, so you see the complete competitor there).
- Select the Lane Evaluation by clicking on the icon bar.
- Click on the top icon bar of "View 1" on Line".



- Adjust the <Number of lanes> that you need.
 In <View 1> the lanes are shown on the left side of the picture (picture 1).
- Select the <Lane direction> 1 (lane 1 is on top or bottom of the picture).
- Select a good visible color by pressing 🕅 so you can see the lanes well.
- Move the mouse on a lane marker until \ddagger is shown (picture 2).
- Press the left mouse button and move the line marker to the position that you need (picture 3).

1	1	1	1	1
2	÷ 2	1	2	2 8
	3	3	3	3
4	4	4	4	4
5	5	5	5	5
6	6	6	6	6

• Repeat the same for all lanes (picture 4)





Now the lane number ^k ₂ is shown (e.g. lane 2) next to the mouse cursor when evaluating the time.

It is also possible to copy the lane setting to other heats or to all heats that are in the meet browser and do not have any pictures yet. This is e.g. important if you change the camera optically (e.g. zoom out) during a competition day. In such a case you set the lanes so it fits to the new camera adjustment and then click on <Export lane setting> and afterwards <Import lane setting to prepared heats>.

11.4 BIB Evaluation



Make the evaluation with bib numbers (ID-number) e.g. for events with a mass arrival at the finish. In this evaluation each competitor needs a bib number that is good visible.

- Move the <Time Curser> to the correct position for the evaluated competitor
- Press the right mouse button
- Input the bib number
- If you use the group mode you can also enter the group (group is not possible for athletics).
- When using athletics you can also input the lane number instead of the bib-number.

15 BIB	Bib	X
Bib		Group name
25	*	•
	QK	Cancel
15 BIB	Bib	X
15 Bib	Bib	Lane
Bib 51	Bib	Lane





Time Jump Markers Evaluation Lines Time Cursor Time Cu

11.5 We show three different lines on the photo finish picture

11.5.1 Time Cursor

The "Line Cursor" is the line that shows the time (net time and time of day of the race). When you move the "Time Cursor" over the picture in horizontal direction the run time will change in the time window. The color of the time cursor is adjustable in the menu <Show>.







11.5.2 Evaluation Lines

This is the line that is shown for each evaluated competitor.

File	e Ti	ming	Setup	Connection	Sport	Show	Help
Log file	Time window	Docking	Sho	w Color	Time cursor •	Evaluation lines +	
I	Display wir	ndows	Time	jump markers	Evaluat	Auto	omatic
						More	Colors

11.5.3 Time Jump Markers

The "Time Jump Markers" show that there is a time jump in the picture. If you record with the motion detection or with a photocell it only records sequences when a competitor goes through the finish. Between these sequences parts of the picture is missing. It is possible to show such picture jumps (time jumps) with the Time Jump Marker.



Picture with <Time Jump Markers>







12 Heat List

The heat list is a flexible list that combines competitor data and results for each heat. Its layout is very flexible to give the operator possibilities to configure this list up to his wishes. The

Heat list:	1000W	- Heat	(1)					-	0 7 >
qmuL 1	Active	Rank	Lane	Last name	Nation	Start time	Finish time	Run time	Delta
GoTo	V	4	1	Antunes Diogo	POR	19:20:32.9683	19:20:43.642	10.68	0.21
GoTo	7	3	2	Abrantes Arnaldo	POR	19:20:32.9683	19:20:43.601	10.64	0.17
GoTo	V	6	3	Somasundaram Sug	SUI	19:20:32.9683	19:20:43.731	10.77	0.30
GoTo	7	2	4	Guirirab Dandago	NAM	19:20:32:9683	19:20:43:550	10.59	0.12
GoTo	V	1	5	Nascimento Yazalde	POR	19:20:32.9683	19.20.43.431	10.47	Winner
GoTo	V	5	6	Fongue Rolf	SUI	19:20:32.9683	19:20:43.708	10.74	0.27
GoTo	V	8	7	Baumann Andreas	SUI	19:20:32.9683	19:20:43.963	11.00	0.53
GoTo	V	6	8	Domogala Patrick	GER	19:20:32.9683	19.20.43.731	10.77	0.30

heat list can have headers different from those of the printed list (start list, result list). It is possible to sort each column by clicking on the column. In this way you can e.g. sort by bib or by rank very easily.

Attention:

It is possible to change the order of the headers with drag with the mouse.

12.1 Field Selector

Field :	selector	If you click on	this icon the field selector opens for the heat list. In the <field< th=""></field<>
V	Active	Selector> you	can activate different headers for the list.
	Aus. delta	A otivo:	To activate or deaptivate a compatitor or track (a.g. for ampty tracks)
	Average speed	Aug delta:	Special calculated time behind for Australian borse racing
V	Bib	Aus. ueila. Averade speed:	Average speed in the race. This works only if you input a distance for the
	City	Average speed.	Average speed in the race. This works only if you input a distance for the
	Class	Bib [.]	Bib number (ID-number) of competitor
	Club	City:	City of competitor
V	Code	Class:	Class of competitor (e.g. for use to export to other software)
	Cycle time	Club:	Club of competitor
	Delta	Code:	Code of competitor (often there is a code from federations)
	Dian	Cvcle time:	For cycling (run time for winner, difference for others, with group time)
	Disq.	Delta:	Time behind the winner
	Distance	Disqu.:	Disgualification of competitor. You can select different reasons for the dis-
	Finish time	·	qualification (e.g. DNS (did not start), DNF (did not finish), DISQ. (disquali-
V	First name		fication), etc.). If you want to change a competitor from a disqualified sta-
	Gender		tus to an active status again you have to check him in the field <activate>.</activate>
V	Group name	Distance:	For races where not every competitor has the same distance. If you have
E	Horse driver		the same distance for all competitors you input it in <event>.</event>
C	Horse name	Finish time:	Shows finish time after evaluation of competitor
	Horse owner	First name:	First name of competitor
	Horse units	Gender:	Gender (sex) of competitor
V	Jump	Group name:	It is possible to use different groups for the ranking (see also 4.).
	km time	Horse driver:	Jockey of the horse
	Lane	Horse name:	Name of the horse
V	Last name	Horse owner:	Owner of the horse
	Missing laps	Horse units:	Distance between horses in finish (e.g. nose, neck, neat, length, etc.)
V	Nation	Jump:	If you have a run time for a competitor and you click on the <go to=""> the</go>
V	Rank	Km time.	picture with the time line shows this competitor.
	Reserved1	Lono:	Special calculated time for noise facility.
	Reserved2	Lane.	Last name of competitor
	Reserved3	Missing lone:	For events that have lans. For the ranking first the competitors that have
	Reserved4	Missing laps.	no missing laps are calculated and ranked with the time, then the competi-
	Reserved5		tors with one missing lap etc
V	Run time	Nation:	Nation of competitor
V	Start time	Rank:	Rank of competitor
V	Team name	Reserve:	Five reserve fields are available for your own use of text.
	Year	Run time:	Shows the calculated run time (calculation form start time and finish time).
		Start time:	Start time of the competitor
		Team name:	Team name of competitor
		Year:	Year of birth of competitor





12.2 Group Mode

If you click on this icon the heat list is shown separated by group names. Of course it is necessary to input a group mode and to input bib and group with the evaluation (use <Bib evaluation> 15.

In the group mode it is possible to use the same bib numbers in each group. The group mode is not available if you select <Track and field with anemometer> and <Track and field without anemometer>.



Move the <Time Cursor> to the right position



Input the bib (ID-number)

15 BIB	Bil	b 🔀		
Bib		Group name		
1	٣	Group A 👻		
OK		Close		

If you open the field bib evaluation always the group is shown that you selected before. When clicking on the arrow in the <Group name> field, all possible groups are shown.



Press the right mouse button for bib evaluation



Click on arrow next to bib number and select group

15 BIB	Bib								
	Bib			Group name					
	26		*	Group A 👻					
	Bib 🧷	Run ti	ime /	Group name 🧭					
	26			Group A					
-	26			Group B					
				.:					

If you have the same bib in different groups you can see the bib in all groups here. This speeds up the evaluation if you are not sure about the group of the competitor.





	. 🗹	×>	<u>x</u>	*	B								
Gro	up nar	me : A (1	1 items)								_		
f)	ump	Active	Rank	Bib	First name	Last name	Club	Nation	Start time	Finish time	Run time	Disq.	Delta
0	Бото	V	2	1	Sebastian	Bormann	LKT	GER	16:51:00.0628	8:13:10.172	2:13:10.172		0.11
¢	Бото	V	1	2	Ben	Richardson	UCD	IRE	16:51:00.0628	8:13:10.057	2:13:10.057		Winn
0	GoTo			3	John	Murray	LWM	IRE	16:51:00.0628			DNS	
¢	SoTo	V	3	4	Nikita	Pustrikan	KAZ	KAZ	16:51:00.0628	8:13:10.276	2:13:10.276		0.21
0	Бото	V	5	5	Navuti	Boonratanatha	THA	THA	16:51:00.0628	8:13:10.586	2:13:10.586		0.52
¢	SoTo	V	7	6	Murat	Almansoori	UAE	UAE	16:51:00.0628	8:13:10.878	2:13:10.878		0.82
0	БоТо	V	6	7	Dmitriy	Lozovoy	UZB	UZB	16:51:00.0628	8:13:10.745	2:13:10.745		0.68
c	Бото	V	4	8	Ole	Andersson	NOR	NOR	16:51:00.0628	8:13:10.496	2:13:10.496		0.43
0	БоТо	V	9	9	Pankaj	Singh	IND	IND	16:51:00.0628	8:13:11.672	2:13:11.672		1.61
C	SoTo	V	10	10	Jaskirat	N Lokesh	KYN	IND	16:51:00.0628	8:13:11.879	2:13:11.879		1.82
0	Бото	7	8	11	Ian	Collis	UCD	IRE	16:51:00.0628	8:13:11:505	2:13:11.505		1.44
Gro	up nar	me : B (1	1 items)								_		
# J	ump	Active	Rank	Bib	First name	Last name	Club	Nation	Start time	Finish time	Run time	Disq.	Delta
0	SoTo	V	9	21	Robert	Deckert	LKT	GER	16:51:00.0628	8:13:12.683	2:13:12.683		2.21
0	Бото	V	1	22	Pat	O' Conluain	UCD	IRE	16:51:00.0628	8:13:10.465	2:13:10.465		Winn
C	SoTo	V	2	23	Brian	Clifford	LWM	IRE	16:51:00.0628	8 13 10 651	2:13:10.651		0.18
0	SoTo	V	3	24	Dmitriy	Gaineyev	KAZ	KAZ	16:51:00.0628	8:13:11.090	2:13:11.090		0.62
C	Бото	V	5	25	Thurakit	Liphongyu	THA	THA	16:51:00.0628	8:13:11.413	213:11.413		0.94
	GoTo			26	Mansoor	Albalooshi	UAE	UAE	16:51:00.0628			DNF -	-
C	Бото	V	4	27	Nikolai	Golovin	UZB	UZB	16:51:00.0628	8:13:11:312	21311312		0.84
0	Бото	V	6	28	Christian	Amundson	NOR	NOR	16:51:00.0628	8 13 12 001	21312.001		1.53
0	Бото	V	8	29	Amresh	Kumar	IND	IND	16:51:00.0628	8:13:12.480	2:13:12.480		2.01
0	Бото	V	7	30	Rahul	Naveen	KYN	IND	16:51:00.0628	8:13:12.174	213:12.174		1.70
C	GoTo	V	10	31	Williams	Parker Barrick	UCD	IRE	16:51:00.0628	8:13:12.771	213:12:771		2.30

12.2.1 Start Time for a Class

It is possible that each group start at a different time. Therefore it is important that you can import a start time for the complete group. To import the start time for the complete class you must first switch to the class mode by clicking on the icon

12.2.1.1 Import a Start Time from the Impulse Log for a Class

- Grab with the mouse the start time in the log list that you want to import.
- Release the start time over the field [Start Time] (next to the mouse it must now show a (+)).

12.2.1.2 Input a Start Time for a Class

• Click with the right mouse button on the field [Start Time].

		2.4							23.00.2014	1120232111	101	vii tu
S 🕺 🖉	× 2	<u>x</u> x	*						29.08.2014	14:28:51.5007	VCL	Virtu
- Group na	me: (78	items)						-	29.08.2014	14:28:58.1137	ci	Stop
T Jump	Active	Ran	Bib	Start time	Finish fim 7	Run time	Cycle time		29.08.2014	14-29-25 1200	a	Ston
Ø GoTo	V	1	186	14:00:0	🗧 Enter a n	nanual star	t time 🔸		Manual start time:		Date:	
Ø GoTo	7	2	195	14:00:00.0	15:06:33.090	1:06:33.0	~		h4.00.00 0000 +	07.1	1.2014	-
Ø GoTo	V	3	209	14:00:00.0	15:06:33 113	1:06:33.1			23.08.2014	14:29:42.81/2	VCI	VITU
Ø GoTo	V	4	165	14:00:00.0	15:06:33.144	1:06:33.1	• <i>u</i> •		29.08.2014	14:30:39.9483	VC1	Virtu





12.3 Delete Line

The active line in the heat list

is deleted (to activate a line click on this line).

12.4 Insert Line

-L

A line is inserted into the heat list (always at the end of the list).

X

12.5 Delete List

This deletes the complete heat list.

12.6 Erase all Times 🛛 💥

Erases all the times of the heat list (start time, finish time, run time).

12.7 Import an Excel list

It is possible to import an Excel list into the OPTIc2NET heat list. The Excel list must have the ending .xls (Excel 97-2003 file). The Excel list must include all data of a competitor lane by lane. It is not necessary to have any header.

2

1	А	В	С	D	Е	F	G	Н	1	E
1	1	Sebastian	Bormann	LKT	GER					
2	2	Ben	Richardson	UCD	IRE					
3	3	John	Murray	LWM	IRE					
4	4	Nikita	Pustrikan	KAZ	KAZ					_
5	5	Navuti	Boonratanathanakorn	THA	THA					
6	6	Murat	Almansoori	UAE	UAE					
7	7	Dmitriy	Lozovoy	UZB	UZB					
8	8	Ole	Andersson	NOR	NOR					
9	9	Pankaj	Singh	IND	IND					
10	10	Jaskirat	N Lokesh	KYN	IND					
11	11	lan	Collis	UCD	IRE					
12	21	Robert	Deckert	LKT	GER					
13	22	Pat	O' Conluain	UCD	IRE					
14	23	Brian	Clifford	LWM	IRE					
15	24	Dmitriy	Gaineyev	KAZ	KAZ					
16	25	Thurakit	Liphongyu	THA	THA					
17	26	Mansoor	Albalooshi	UAE	UAE					
18	27	Nikolai	Golovin	UZB	UZB					
19	28	Christian	Amundson	NOR	NOR					
20	29	Amresh	Kumar	IND	IND					
21	30	Rahul	Naveen	KYN	IND					
22	31	Williams	Parker Barrick	UCD	IRE					-
14 4	F H Tab	elle1 / Tabel	lle2 / Tabelle3 / 🖓 🥼) II





Click on <Import an Excel list>







Select the file that you want to import the imported list is shown

		In	nport Excel list			- 0	23
📩 Ir	mport an excel list	Copy d	ata to heat list	👼 Column ma	apping +		
团	x0	x1	x2	x3	x4	x5	-
1)	1	Sebastian	Bormann	LKT	GER		
2	2	Ben	Richardson	UCD	IRE		H
3	3	John	Murray	LWM	IRE		
4	4	Nikita	Pustrikan	KAZ	KAZ		
5	5	Navuti	Boonratanatha	THA	THA		
6	6	Murat	Almansoori	UAE	UAE		
7	7	Dmitriy	Lozovoy	UZB	UZB		
8	8	Ole	Andersson	NOR	NOR		
9	9	Pankaj	Singh	IND	IND		
10	10	Jaskirat	N Lokesh	KYN	IND		*
1		111				0	

F	×0	Y	Clear this manning	x4		x5	
1)	•	<u> </u>	Clear this mapping	LKT	GER		
2			Bib	KYN	IND		
3			Lane	UCD	IRE		
4			First name	UCD	IRE		
5			Last name	LKT	GER		
6			First name - Last name	UCD	IRE		
7			Last name - first name	LWM	IRE		
8			Club	KAZ	KAZ		
9			City	THA	THA		
10			Horse name	UAE	UAE	-	. *
4			Horse driver				*
			Horse owner				
			Year				
			Team name				
			Distance				
			Code				
			Gender				
			Class				
			Nation				
			Nation Start time				
			Nation Start time Reserved1				
			Nation Start time Reserved1 Reserved2				
			Nation Start time Reserved1 Reserved2 Reserved3				
			Nation Start time Reserved1 Reserved2 Reserved3 Reserved4				

Change all headers as you need them

Born

2 Ben Richardson UCD

Murray

Pustrikan

Lozovoy

Singh

N Lokesh

Andersson

Import Excel list 🛓 Import an excel list 🏢 Copy data to heat list 👼 Column mapping 🝷 First name Last name Club

Navuti Boonratanatha

Murat Almansoori

3 John

Nikita

Dmitriy

Ole

Pankaj

Jaskirat

10

X

🚰 Bib

2

2

4 5

6

8

9

10

1.

The possible headers are shown.

Select the headers by clicking with the right mouse button on the header that you want to change

5		Im	port Excel list				23
📩 Import	an excel list	Copy da	ata to heat list	👼 Column ma	pping •		
2 x0	N [△] ×1		x2	x3	x4	x5	
1 🕨	N 1	Sebastian	Bormann	LKT	GER		ſ
2	10	Jaskirat	N Lokesh	KYN	IND		
3	11	Ian	Collis	UCD	IRE		
4	2	Ben	Richardson	UCD	IRE		
5	21	Robert	Deckert	LKT	GER		
6	22	Pat	O' Conluain	UCD	IRE		
7	23	Brian	Clifford	LWM	IRE		
8	24	Dmitriy	Gaineyev	KAZ	KAZ		
9	25	Thurakit	Liphongyu	THA	THA		
10	26	Mansoor	Albalooshi	UAE	UAE		
4		111				+	

Click on the header that you want to show

Bib	Y Clear this manning	3 x4		x5	
•	Clear this mapping	LKT	GER		
2	E Bib	UCD	IRE		
3	Lane	LWM	IRE		
4	First name	KAZ	KAZ		
5	Last name	THA	THA		
6	First name - Last name	UAE	UAE		
7	Last name - first name	UZB	UZB		
8	Club	NOR	NOR		
9	City	IND	IND		
0	Horse name	KYN	IND		
	Horse driver		_		-
	Horse owner				
	Year				
	Team name				
	Distance				
	L Code				
	Gender				
	Gender				
	Code Gender Class Nation				
	Code Gender Class Nation Start time				
	Code Gender Class Nation Start time Reserved1				
	Code Gender Class Nation Start time Reserved1 Reserved2				
	Code Gender Class Nation Start time Reserved1 Reserved2 Reserved3				
	Code Gender Class Nation Start time Reserved1 Reserved2 Reserved3 Reserved4				

Click on <Copy data to heat list> to import list in OPTIc2NET software

6		Imp	ort Excel list				23
📩 Ir	mport an excel list	🔲 Copy da	ata to heat list	Çolumn ma	apping 🝷		
团	Bib 4	First name	Last n Conv dat	a to heat list	Nation	x5	5
1)	1	Sebastian	Bormann	ENT	GER		
2	2	Ben	Richardson	UCD	IRE		
3	3	John	Murray	LWM	IRE		
4	4	Nikita	Pustrikan	KAZ	KAZ		
5	5	Navuti	Boonratanatha	THA	THA		
6	6	Murat	Almansoori	UAE	UAE		
7	7	Dmitrly	Lozovoy	UZB	UZB		
8	8	Ole	Andersson	NOR	NOR		
9	9	Pankaj	Singh	IND	IND		
10	10	Jaskirat	N Lokesh	KYN	IND		
4		III				,	

12.8 Export an Excel list



Click on the icon 🚨 to export the heat list to Excel. •

Nation

LWM

THA

UAE

UZB

NOR

IND

KYN

KAZ

GER

IRE

IRE

KAZ

THA

UAE

UZB

NOR

IND

IND

Select were you want to store it on your PC and the file name. •





12.9 Export the Result list

There are certain ways to export a result XML-file or RS232 interface.

list. The export can be e.g. as a text-file,

To adjust the export you have to click on the icon \Join in the meet browser.

12.10 Import a List Layout

For the heat list it is possible to select many different columns. The columns you can than sort in an order as you like with drag and drop. It is also possible to import list layouts that you stored in previous events.

12.11 Export a Lit Layout



To prepare the header of the heat list for an event might take some time. It is possible to export the header in order to import it in other events later.





13 Meet Browser

The meet browser is the center of the software. Her you handle the race structure and input important information about the meeting, session, event and heat.

As soon as you <Create a new race> you are asked to input a <Meet name>.

		Σ
Meet name	1	
City		
Nation		
Organizer	£	
Promoter		
Timing name		
Altitude		
Entry date	04.07.2014	-
Type of sport	General	

Here you can also input other important information for the meeting that is also printed. Important is to also select the correct **SPORT** (<Type of sport> there are sport specific differences in the OPTIc2NET software).

As soon as you <Create a new race> a default meet browser is configured for this meeting.

In most cases the photo finish system is used with a sport specific evaluation program that can provide the data to OPTIc2NET. In this case you can import the complete race structure from this program.

If you have to build your own race structure you have to follow the steps as below:

The default meet browser automatically shows the meeting name that you created.

Session (1)	Heat name Heat number	Heat (1)
A. Heat (1)	Scheduled time Start time	4.1

Click on session and input the session name on the right side (e.g. morning)

Int Meeting 2014 Event (1) Heat (1)	Name Number Location Type Date	Session (1) 1 04.07.2014
	Most Service Fil	US:20:22





Click on event and input the event name on the right side (e.g. Men Quali 100 m)

Int Meeting 2014		
Section (1)	Discipline	Event (1
	Distance	0
	Number	1
"TH Heat (1)	Order	0
	Scheduled time	1.1

Click on heat and input the heat name on the right side (e.g. Men Quali 100 m)

02X		
Int. Meeting 2014	Heat name Heat number Scheduled time Start time Wind	(Heat (1) 1 : : , [m/s]
	Meet Session Even	t Heat

For athletics events you have to select the distance for the automatic use of the anemometer

Int. Meeting 2014	Discipline Distance Number Order Scheduled t Scheduled t 500 500	Men C m m m 0 m 0 m 0 m	2uali 100 100 m
-------------------	---	---	--------------------

- If you want to insert additional sessions move the mouse to <Session(1)> of the race structure and click with the right mouse button. A pull down menu opens and you click on <Insert new session>
- If you want to insert additional events move the mouse to <Event> of the race structure and click with the right mouse button. A pull down menu opens and you click on <Insert new event>
- If you want to insert additional heats move the mouse to <Heat> of the race structure and click with the right mouse button. A pull down menu opens and you click on <Insert new heat>

leet browser: Men Quali 400 m - MQ1-400m		Meet browser: Women Quali 100 m - WQ2-100	m - D .
a z x		DZX	
Morning Morning Men Quali 100 m 993000 MQ2-100m 993300 MQ4-100m 093300 MQ4-100m 093900 MQ4-100m 093900 MQ4-100m 093900 MQ4-100m 093900 MQ4-100m 094500 WQ1-100m 094500 WQ2-100m 094500 WQ3-100m 095500 Men Quali 400 m More Quali 400 m MQ2-400m 101500	Heat name MQ1-400m Heat number 9 Scheduled time 10:15:00 Start time Wind , [m/s]	Int. Meeting 2014 Int. Meeting 2014 Image: Morning Image: Mer Quai 100 m MQ1-100m MQ2-100m MQ2-100m MQ4-100m MQ4-100m MQ4-100m MQ4-100m MQ2-100m MQ2-100m MQ2-100m Women Quai 100 m WQ2-100m WQ2-100m WQ2-100m WQ2-100m WQ2-100m WQ3-100m WQ3-100m <t< th=""><th>Heat name WQ2-100m Heat number 6 Scheduled time 09:48:00 Start time 9:56:27:5350 Wind [m/s]</th></t<>	Heat name WQ2-100m Heat number 6 Scheduled time 09:48:00 Start time 9:56:27:5350 Wind [m/s]
Women Quali 400 m	Meet Session Event Heat	MQ2-400m 10:20:00	Meet Session Event Heat





• It is also possible to insert several heats at once. Move the mouse to the heat were you want to add below new heats and click with the right mouse button. A pull down menu opens and you click on <Insert new heat>.



• Adjust the amount of heats that you want to insert and then click on <Insert more new heats>.





14 Synchronizing of the OPTIc2

The photo finish system OPTIc2NET always works with time of day. This means it registers a start time and a finish time. From this two times the run time is calculated. The start time and finish time are always stored with the highest timing precision of 1/10,000th second.

In order to have realistic start- and finish times the OPTIc2 camera is automatically synchronized with the PC time of your computer. If you want to synchronize the OPTIC2 camera with another timing device this is also possible.

In the footer the time of day is shown on the right side.



 To carry out an external synchronization (e.g. with another timing device) click on <Timing> and <Synchronize master timer>.



• The window below opens. Input the time from which you start the internal clock and confirm it with <Enter>.







- If you always want to have such synchronization when you start the OPTIc2NET software, click on <Show this dialog at program start>.
- The start gun icon k is now shown, which means the system is ready for a sync impulse.



- If you want to synchronize it with another timing device connect the start banana sockets of both systems with each other (green with green, black with black).
- Make an external impulse on channel C0 (start channel) or by clicking with the mouse on the start gun icon **k**.





15 Integration of IDCam

The IDCam is a webcam that is controlled by the timing and records the finish arrival. The purpose of the IDCam is to read the ID number of each athlete for a fast and efficient result. With the IDCam the operator of the photo finish system does not depend on the written finish protocol and he can start to evaluate the result immediately after the finish arrival.

The OPTIc2.NET software allows you to integrate the *A*LGE IDCam. This has the advantage that the recording of the IDCam is also controlled by the OPTIc2.NET software and also that the picture of the IDCam moves synchronous with the movement of the photo finish picture.









15.1 Adjustment of the IDCam

The IDCam can work on the same PC (you need a fast PC and a very fast hard disk) or on a second PC that is connected with the PC of the OPTIc2 by Ethernet.

To adjust the IDCam Ethernet connections do the following adjustment:

- Click on <Connection>
- Click on <Setup IDCam>



15.1.1 OPTIc2-camera and IDCam are connected at the same PC

• The IP-address **must** be set on: **127.0.01.** This is adjusted if you click on the icon <IDCam app. is on this computer>.

rile	Timing	Setup	Connection	Sport	Show	Help
Connect IDCam IDC IDC IDC IDC IDC IDC IDC	Timing Setup IDCam P address 127, 0, 0 IDCam app	Setup Run time Automatic Day time to the IDCam: of IDCam serv 1	Connection Shift day tin Hold time [s	Sport he ec]	Show 5 : G0 C-1 R	Help 0 SO EO LO

15.1.2 OPTIc2-camera and IDCam are connected at different PCs

• Input the IP-address of the PC of the IDCam





15.1.3 Offset between photo finish and IDCam

In most cases the ID numbers of the athletes are not optimally readable at the finish line, but some meters before. Therefore, it is of advantage to adjust a suitable offset time between IDCam and photo finish. This shows you the best picture of the IDCam when you make the result for an athlete.

Input the "offset time" that is best suitable for your use!

15.2 Integration of the IDCam at the same PC

- Start the OPTIc2.NET software.
- Make sure that the photo finish camera OPTIc2 works. You must see the picture of the camera.
- Start the IDCam software
- Make sure that the IDCam works. You must see the picture of the camera on the monitor.
- Click in the menu on <System>
- Click on <Connect to IDCam>



IDCam not connected:

IDCam -

IDCam

Icon in the footer has a red background

Connection with IDCam activated but no connection yet:

Icon in the footer has a yellow background

IDCam connected and works:

.

IDCam 🚽

Icon in the footer has a green background





16 How to keep the OPTIc2 updated

Keep the OPTIc2NET software updated. We permanently work on the software and add new functions or improvements. The camera and distribution box also have integrated software that should be updated from time to time. In case camera or distribution box need an update you receive a feedback on the PC monitor after starting the OPTIc2NET software.

At the moment the camera and distribution box update is not possible in this software. To update the camera or distribution box the old software OPTIc2 has to be used. We hope we can soon integrate the hardware update tool into the OPTIc2NET software also.

16.1 Direct links to download the updates

PC-Software for the OPTIc2/OPTIc2n/OPTIc2o: http://www.alge-timing.com/alge/download/software/OPTIc2NETSetup.exe

IEEE1394 Driver for OPTIc2: http://www.alge-timing.com/download/Software/Driver/OPTIc2Driver.exe

Camera Hardware and Software: http://www.alge-timing.com/alge/download/uC/OPTIc2CameraFlash.exe

16.2 Update of the OPTIc2 PC-Software

Update the new OPTIc2NET software like any other PC software by double clicking on the file OPTIc2NETSetup.exe. Please follow the instructions of the install program.

16.3 Update of the Camera

At the moment this only works with the old OPTIc2 software.

To update the camera start the OPTIc2 software with a connected camera. For the update the camera must not be in test nor record mode.

- Click on <System>
- Click on <Flashing devices...>
- Now the flash communication opens.
- Select the device that you want to flash (usually Cam1)
- Open the file that you downloaded. There is a hardware and software file that you must upload. It is necessary



to upload both files. It does not matter which one first.

fl	ashing devices				
	open file	File:			
	send file	Target	Cam1	•	
		downloading			
		programming			
				cancel	(close)





13

6

7

8

9

- 10

- 11

17 Technical Data of the OPTIc2n

All technical data is the same for the camera OPTIc2 and OPTIc2o, but the OPTIc2n has different connections:

<i>Measuring Range: Quartz Frequency: Frequency Deviation:</i>	23 hours, 59 minutes, 59.9999 seconds TCXO 20,000 MHz (temperature compensated quartz oscillator) Temperature: +/-2.5 ppm at -10 to 70°C (+/-0.009 sec. per hour) Ageing: +/- 1 ppm per year
	Frequency Adjustment: +/- 0.1 ppm at 25°C
Power Supply:	+9 to 34 VDC
Temperature Range:	0° to 50°C (32° to 122° F)
Recording of Pictures:	on the hard disk of PC
Storing the Races:	- internal hard disk
	- external hard disk
	 recordable CD, recordable DVD
	- memory stick, etc.
Input Impulse:	input resistance 10 kOhm against +5V
	resolution with <1 Volt (falling flank)
	hysteresis about 2 Volt
Output 5V DC stabilized:	total max. 120 mA
Operation keys:	PC keyboard and mouse

14

2

3

5

12

Connections:

- 11 ...start input (banana socket) Green....input channel 0 (start) Black.....ground
- 10finish input (banana socket) Red...... input channel 1 (finish) Black..... ground
- 5.....DIN-socket
 - 1 input channel 0 (start)
 - 2 input channel 1 (stop)
 - 3 common ground
 - 4 input external supply (9 34 VDC)
 - 5 output +5 VDC stabilized
 - 6 input channel 2 (intermediate time)
- 9.....display board (banana socket) Yellow... output data
 - Black..... ground
- 4 motor zoom
 - 1 empty
 - 2 empty
 - 3 Zoom in
 - 4 Iris close
 - 5 Focus near
 - 6 Iris open
 - 7 Zoom out
 - 8 Focus far
- 2.....IEEE 1394a 6-pol
- 3.....GOF (LC duplex glass optical fiber connector)
- 14 CAT5e cable with RJ45 plug
- 7 power supply









Requirements for IEEE 1394 interface for PC:

Compatibility: IEEE 1394A or 1394B, OHCI compatible min. 400 MBit per second

Minimum Requirements for the PC (Desktop or Notebook)

Operating system:	Windows XP, Windows Vista, Windows 7 or Windows 8
Processor:	Intel i5 (or better)
Hard Disk:	minimum 250 GB (the faster the better)
Storage:	minimum 4 GB RAM
Graphic:	minimum 128 MB graphic RAM
Monitor resolution:	minimum 1024 x 800, better 1600 x 1200, 1920 x 1024 or 1920 x 1200
Interface:	IEEE 1394A or 1394 OHCI compatible

Display Board Interface "display board":

Transfer Format:1 start bit, 8 data bit, no parity bit, 1 stop bitTransfer Speed:2.400 BaudTransfer Protocol:ASCII

Data Format:

The data format has 24 ASCII characters. The 24th character is carriage return. It sends every 1/10 second one data string. The fourth character is a point for the running time (running time), a blank for a zero time, or a C for a stop time (run time). For a standing time (run time) you can have, depending on the adjusted precision, 1/10, 1/100, 1/1000, or 1/10.000 seconds. Using this adjustment only the winner time is sent to the interface (and intermediate times)

	1	2	
123456	78901234	456789012	234
С	HH:MM	SS.zht	(CR)
•	HH:MM	SS.z	(CR)

Number of ASCII characters run time with 1/10000th precision running time

- the fourth character for running time, the 17th character for separation between seconds and 1/10 seconds
- HH hours

MM minutes

SS seconds

Z..... 1/10 seconds

H 1/100 seconds (depending on the precision)

T...... 1/1000 seconds (depending on the adjusted precision)

(CR)... the 24th character is Carriage Return





18 Accessories for Photo Finish

For the *A*LGE photo finish we offer very useful accessories.

18.1 IEEE 1394 PC-Interface

Depending on the PC there are different possibilities for the IEEE1394 connection to the camera. Depending on the connectors of the PC and camera, as well as the camera distance to the PC you have to select the ideal cable (see next page).

Desktop PC:

Most desktop PCs have an IEEE1394 interface included. You can use this interface, but in most cases these interfaces do not allow to supply the camera or cable with repeater directly from the PC by using the IEEE1394 cable. Alternatively, you can insert a PCI-card or PCI-Express-card in a desktop PC.

Most IEEE1394 interfaces of desktops have a type A or C plug.

Notebook:

Most notebooks have an IEEE1394 interface included. In most cases this is the 4 pin C-type. This plug does not supply other devices (camera, repeater) through IEEE1394. Alternatively, it is possible to plug a PC-card (also called PCMIC or CardBus) or Express-card for the Notebooks.

ALGE-TIMING sells tested cards for IEEE1394 to use with different PC types:

PCI Card with IEEE 1394 sockets - Desktop PC	1394PCI
PCI-Express Card with IEEE1394 sockets - Desktop PC	1394PCle
PC Card (PCMCIA or CardBus) with IEEE1394 sockets - Notebook	1394PC
Express Card with IEEE 1394 sockets - Notebook	1394EXP
Power Supply for IEEE1394 Notebook Interface Cards - 16 VDC	PS16F





18.2 IEEE 1394 Cable and Connections

As many possible combinations of different plugs for IEEE1394 exist, the cable is not included in the normal scope of supply. Check the connection on your PC and camera, decide what length you require and then specifically order the correct cable for your demands.

OPTIc2:	connectors of type A and C
OPTIc2o:	connectors of type C
ODTION	accordent for two A

OPTIc2n: connector for type A

Depending on the PC you can have connectors of type A, B or C.

ALGE-CODE	DESCRIPTION	PICTURES
AA-	6 to 6 Pin	
AB-	6 to 4 Pin	
AC-	6 to 9 Pin	
CC-	9 to 9 Pin	
BC-	9 to 4 Pin	

The following cables are available from ALGE:

IEEE 1394a cable, 2 m (6 pin to 6 pin)	AA-2
IEEE 1394a cable, 4.5 m (6 pin to 6 pin)	AA-4.5
IEEE 1394a cable, 10 m (6 pin to 6 pin)	AA-10L
IEEE 1394a cable, 2.5 m (6 pin to 4 pin)	AB-2
IEEE 1394a cable, 4.5 m (6 pin to 4 pin)	AB-4.5
IEEE 1394a cable, 10 m (6 pin to 4 pin)	AB-10
IEEE 1394b cable, 2 m (9 pin to 9 pin)	CC-2
IEEE 1394b cable, 4.5 m (9 pin to 9 pin)	CC-4.5
IEEE 1394b cable, 10 m (9 pin to 9 pin)	CC-10
IEEE 1394b cable, 4.5 m (9 pin to 6 pin)	AC-4.5
IEEE 1394b cable, 10 m (9 pin to 6 pin)	AC-10





18.3 Network Cable with RJ45 Plug

The OPTIc2n and the Distribution Box OCD2 have a network adapter built in. This adapter is the interface between IEEE1394 and RJ45 cable connection. A built in adapter reduces the number of cables and makes the system more reliable.

The advantage of the network cable is the maximum cable distance you can operate with. With an IEEE1394 cable the maximum cable distance between PC or Distribution Box and camera is 10 m. With a network cable you can operate with distances of up to 80 m.

The network cable *A*LGE uses for 50 or 80 m is a CAT7 cable with a bigger copper diameter. This allows us to also send the power supply through the network cable from a Distribution Box to the camera. This cable is made for outdoor use and supplied with a rugged cable reel.

Network Cable for OPTIc2n - 10 m	260-10
Network Cable for OPTIc2n - 20 m	260-20
Cable Reel with Network Cable for OPTIc2n - 50 m	KT-260-50
Cable Reel with Network Cable for OPTIc2n - 80 m	KT-260-80

18.4 Optical Cable and Fiber Optic Adapter

The OPTIc2o, OPTIc2n and the Distribution Box OCD2 have an integrated adapter for fiber optic cable. This adapter is the interface between the IEEE1394 and the optical cables. A built in adapter reduces the connected cables and makes the system more reliable.

The big advantage of an optical connection between PC or Distribution Box and camera is the distance you can bridge. With the IEEE1394 cable you can go a maximum of 10 m (without repeater), but the optical cable allows you a cable of a several hundred meters.

From *ALGE-TIMING* you can obtain the following optical adapter and fiber optic cables:

Adapter IEEE1394 to glass fiber including power supply (with cable, 1 piece)	GLAS1394
Glass Fiber Optic Cable 50 m, LC-plugs, fix wiring, 2 core	G2-LC50
Glass Fiber Optic Cable 100 m, LC-plugs, fix wiring, 2 core	G2-LC100
Cable reel with glass fiber optical cable, 100 m, LC-plug, 2 core, fix wiring	KT-G2-LC100
Cable reel with glass fiber optic cable, 50 m, LC-plug, 4 core, rugged	KT-G4LC50
Cable reel with glass fiber optic cable, 100 m, LC-plug, 4 core, rugged	KT-G4LC100
Cable reel with glass fiber optic cable, 200 m, LC-plug, 4 core, rugged	KT-G4LC200




18.5 Lenses for the OPTIc2

The photo finish includes no lens as each sport has different requirements. *ALGE-TIMING* offers different lenses that suit optimal to the camera.

Universal Lens Z75:

- manual zoom lens
- very light sensitive
- usable for most sports
- 12.5 to 75 mm, F1.2

Motor Zoom Lens MZ75:

- motorized zoom lens
- operated from OPTIc2 PC software
- very light sensitive
- usable for most sports
- recommended if camera is not easily reachable
- 12.5 to 75 mm, F1.8

Motor Zoom Lens MZ160:

- motorized zoom lens
- operated from OPTIc2 PC software
- light sensitive
- used in big stadiums if the finish line is far away
- 16 to 160 mm, F1.8

Wide Angle Lens L8.5:

- wide angle lens
- very light sensitive
- used if the camera is very close to the finish line
- 8.5 mm, F1.3

18.6 Tripod and Gear Head

Tripod TRIMAN:

ALGE-TIMING offers a professional tripod (max. height 2.27 m or 89.4 in). A stable tripod is important for good pictures with a photo finish system.

Gear Head 410:

Manual gear head to adjust the camera easily to the finish line. The gear head allows a three-dimensional adjustment of the camera.

Electronic Gear Head 410-E:

Electrical gear head to adjust the camera easily to the finish line. The gear head allows a three-dimensional adjustment of the camera from the software of the OPTIc2. It is ideal for a camera that is mounted out of reach of the operator (e. g. on a high tripod, ceiling).













18.7 Distribution Box OCD2

The Distribution Box OCD2 is a professional accessory for your photo finish system. It is of major advantage, if the camera is far from the operator. You can connect all cables from external devices to the OCD2. From the OCD2 to the camera you can use a network cable or an optical cable.

The Distribution Box OCD2 has an internal backup battery that also supplies the camera in case of a power failure for about one hour (if you use a cable with power supply, e. g. network cable 260-xx). Further, it includes a speech amplifier for communication between starter and timing operator.



Advantages of the Distribution Box:

- Synchronization of up to three connected photo finish cameras
- Connection of external devices next to the operator and not at the camera
- Built-in converter for optical cable or network cable (CAT5e with RJ45)
- Built-in speech amplifier to connect a headset for communication between starter and timing operator
- Connection of up to three independent input signals (start, IT, finish) for up to three different photo finish cameras
- Built-in battery pack to run the OCD2 and photo finish camera independently from mains
- Connection for the anemometer (athletics)
- Connection for protocol printer P5





8 2 3 5 9 10 11 12 1 6 7 14 15 20 21 22 13 16 17 18 19 23 24

18.7.1 Connections of the Distribution Box OCD2

- 1.....Socket for RS232 interface
- 2.....Socket for protocol printer P5-8
- 3.....Socket for photocell A
- 4.....Socket for photocell B
- 5.....Socket for photocell C
- 6.....Socket for headset
- 7.....Volume for headset
- 8.....External power supply input (+10,5 to 14 VDC)
- 9.....Socket GOF LC Duplex fiber optic cable to camera
- 10.....Socket IEEE1394a 6-pin connection (to PC)
- 11.....Socket RJ45 for Network cable to camera (cross cable)
- 12.....On-switch
- 13......Banana socket Impulse Start A-C0
- 14......Banana socket Impulse Start B-C3
- 15......Banana socket Impulse Start C-C6
- 16......Banana socket Impulse Stop A-C1
- 17......Banana socket Impulse Stop B-C4
- 18......Banana socket Impulse Stop C-C7
- 19......Banana socket display board (identical with 20)
- 20......Banana socket display board (identical with 19)
- 21.....Socket for anemometer Windspeed WS2
- 22.....Fuse for device (2 A, time lag fuse)
- 23......Mains Power Supply (90 260 VAC)
- 24.....Fuse for power supply (1 A, time lag fuse)





18.7.2 Examples for the Connection of the Camera

18.7.2.1 Indoor Track and Field

In indoor arenas it is standard to have two different finishes. One is for the sprints of up to 60 m and the other one is for the oval. Therefore, it is necessary to have two different selectable photo finish cameras. If you use the distribution box for such an installation it is easy to install the cabling for the complete system.



It is possible to adjust the channels of the distribution box in a way that you can trigger the recording of the photo finish of the sprint only with the sprint photocell and the oval with the photocell of the oval.

The Distribution Box OCD2 has a built-in speech amplifier for the communication between starter and timing operator. This means the timing operator connects the headset to the OCD2 and is able to communicate with the starter using the start wire for the communication. No additional cable is necessary.





18.7.2.2 Horse Racing with Several Tracks

Horse race tracks often have more than one track next to each other (e. g. sand track and grass track). For such an installation a Distribution Box makes the cable installation for the cameras and external devices much simpler.







18.7.3 Technical Data of the Distribution Box OCD2

Quartz Frequency: Measuring Range:	TCXO 20.000 MHz (temperature compensated quartz oscillator)
Frequency Deviation:	Temperature: +/- 2.5 ppm at -10 to 70° C (+/- 0.009 sec. per hour)
	Ageing: +/- 1 ppm per year Frequency Adjustment : +/- 0.1 ppm at 25°C
Internal Battery:	lead battery 12 V / 2.2 Ah
Power Supply:	+9 - 15 VDC
Temperature Range:	0 to 50°C
Connections:	3 x start input (banana socket)
	3 x finish input (banana socket)
	3 x finish input (DIN-socket)
	2 x display boards (banana socket)
	1 x RS232 – DIN-socket
	1 x Printer – DIN-socket
	3 x Photocells – DIN-socket
	1 x Headset – DIN-socket
	1 x Windspeed WS2
	1 x Camera – IEEE1394a 6pol-bilingual
	1 x Camera - GOF (LC duplex glass optical fiber)
	1 x Power Supply +9 - 15 VDC
	1 x Mains 100 – 240 VAC









Subject to changes

Copyright by

ALGE-TIMING GmbH Rotkreuzstr. 39 6890 Lustenau / Austria www.alge-timing.com